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Slate or other jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer
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503 469-4800

Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock $0.00I Par Value Per Share The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act NONE

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities

Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the

Act Yes No tJ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports and

has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate web site if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-I during the preceding 12 months or for

such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller
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Non-accelerated filer Do not check if smaller reporting company Smaller reporting company
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As of February 23 2011 6982494 shares of the registrants common stock were outstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrants proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A the Proxy Statement for its 2011 annual meeting of
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PART

unless the context otherwise requires references in this Annual Report on iorm /0- to iimorc
sic our and us refer to iginarc Corporation iPul ii Old Dgunarc refer to the former iounarc

Corporation sshu/ merged with and into n/iollv owned suhsiduirv of L- Mentt Solutuns Inc I.- Oil

August /3 2008 and its consolidated subsidiaries other 1/lan us

All Jo//or liliolints ore in thOU.5IPldS unless othintist iioted

1jtimar 1iscoser is registered trademark of Iigimarc Corporation This Annual Report on /orns 0-A

also n-ludes trademnarks and trade names owned hr other parties and all other such inulepark.s and tml/e

name.s mentioned in this Annual Report on ir/0K are the property of their respective owners

IIEM BUSINESS

The frllostiig thscu.s.s-ion of igimarc business ontain.sforwardlooking .slateets rclatinc future

vent.s or the future/nanc-ial performance of Jigimare Our actual results could differ nateriallsfom i/lose

amztu-ipated in these frsiard-looking statements Please see 1/u discussion regardiig forward-looking stoleleli.s

included in 1/u.s Annual Report on Iorm /0K in item Mauasenet iisi-u.s.sion and Anolvsi.s of Financial

opu/ition and Results of Operations unler the caption iorstard-iookns Statement.s

ihe following discussion of our business should be read in conjunction with our con.solulotcd financ oil

.statement.s cimuc the related notes and other fnancuil infirnation appearing cl.scsc/ure in i/u.s Aniuwil Repoit Oil

iorm /0-K

lhe Separation of the ligital Watermarking Business from Old ligimarc

On August 2X8 Old Digimarc spun off its wholly owned subsidiary lMR Il which held all of the

assets and liabilities of Old Digimarcs Digital Watermarking Business

tJntil August 2X we were wholly owned subsidiary of DMR lIX which immediately prior to the

spin-off was wholly owned subsidiary of Old ligimarc DMRC lic was formed in 1elaware on June

2X in anticipation of the spinoff of the Digital Watermarking Business Prior to the spinott in transaction

which we refer to as the restructuring Old Digimarc contributed all of the assets and liabilities related to its

Iigitai Waterniarking Business together with all of Old Iigimarcs cash including cash received upon the

exercise of stock options to LLC The restructuring did not result in the loss of any significant ligital

Watermarking Business customers or contracts

lollowing the restructuring all of the limited liability company interests of lMR were transferred to

newly created trust for the benefit of 011 ligimarc record holders on the basis of one liriiited luahilit coiiipatiy

interest of 1MR 11 for
every three and one-half shares of 011 1igimarc conimoil stock held hr the

shareholder as of the spin-off record date and time DMRC 1i then merged with and into lMR orporatlon

and each limited liability company interest of DMRC lAX was converted into one share of couiiiion stock of

IMRC Corporation After completion of the acquisition of Old Digimarc by 1.-I DMR orporation changed

its name to ligimarc Corporation As result upon effectiveness of the Form 10 50 October 2o0 cacti ld

ligimarc record holder received one share of Iigimarc common stock for
every

three and one-half shares if ld

ligimarc common stock held by the shareholder as of the spinoff record date and time and we hecaine an

independent publicly-traded company owning and operating the ligital Watermarking Business

O%erview

1igimarc orporation enables governments and enterprises around the workt to give tigital identities to

media and ohects that computers can sense and recognize and to which they can react Our technology provides

the means to infuse persistent digital information perceptible only to computers and digital devices into all



forms of miiedia content Ihe unique digital identifier placed in media generally persists with it teg rdless ot the

st ri but it lii patti rid whether it is ci pi ed man pu ated or ci lii ye ned to dill crc ii urmat rid Ii ni at fec the

quality of the content or the enjoyment or other traditional uses of it ur technology permits computers and

ig
tal dcv ices ti quickly identify relevant data from vast amounts of rued ia Content

um icchmu lit IC5 arul those of our licensees span range of media content enahl rig our custotuiers and

those of liii pamtners to

Quickly identify and effectively manage music movies television programming digital images

kcu rtuents and other printed material specially in light of new non linear di si rihut ion over the

internet

ctcr ci nimuterf it rig
of money media and goods and pi racy of mo ies and music

Support tie. digital media distribution models and methods to moneti/e muuedia content

l.e.cm age the power of ubiquitous coiuuputing to instantly link consumers to wealth of itìlorniation

amid/ interactive experiences related to the media and objects they encou liter each day

Provide consumers with more choice and access to media content when where and how they want it

ii ha nec muagery rid vi let by assoc at
rig

nietadat au he lit cat
rig

rued ci lute mit give rn merit

and couuuiereial uses and

Better secure identity documents to enhance national security and combat identity theft and fraud

At the come of our intellectual property
is signal processing technology innovation known as digital

..atermmuarkimug which allows imperceptible digital information to he embedded in all fornus of digitally designed

put
ILicLf list ri buted media content and some physical objects includi

rig photographs niov ies music

me Ic still personal dent ficat ion documents inane ial instruments industrial pails and product packages lie

fig
it al in ft rm at it ui can be detected and read by Ic range

of ci mpu te rs mi hi Ic ph ules and other fig ta

IC ices

We provide technology-based solutions directly and through our licensees Our proprietary technology has

proven to he powerful element of document security giving rise to our longtertii relationship with

Lonsortiuiu ot central banks which we refer to as the Central Banks aiid many leading cotuipanies
in the

intoirutation technology industry We and our licensees have successfully propagated digital watermarking in

imiusic iuiovies teles ision broadcasts images and printed materials ligital watermarks have been used in these

applications to improve media rights and asset management reduce piracy and counterfeiting losses itiiprove

narket
rig progmatus permit more efficient and effecti ye distribution of sal tiable media cotitetit and enhance

Lonsu miier entertai ii muicnt and comnuercial experiences

ta aterniark rig
is technology that allows our customers to embed digital data into any

media content

that is digital processed at some point during its Ii fecycle The technology can he appl ied to prnnted materials

RIco audio and images The inclusion of these digital signals enables wide range of ituprovements
in security

amid uuelia tuanagemluent and new business niodels for distrihut ion and consu
nuipt

ion of tuiedia content Over the

ears techiut logy amid ritel lectual property portfolios have growti to cniconupass iuuamuy
related technologies

Rankuote counterfeit deterrence was the first coniituiercially successful use of our technologies 011

igiiuuamc iii cooperation with the Central Banks developed system to use digital technologies to deter

hamikmotc counterfeiting More recently innovations based on 011 ligimarcs ligital watenruarkinig technology

mud pe ni nec Ii as been lv raged to create nie pri
Id Lie to fete iti rite rf cit

mug
and atu pe niii driver

licenses amid other governmuuentissued secure credentials In parallel 011 liginuiarcs business partners under

patent on technology licenses from us are delivering digital watermuiarkinig solutions to track and monitor the

di stri hut iou of nulusic ruiages television and movies to consunuers In Novenihci of we aniiiotiniced

relationship with The Nielsen Company US 1.t. or Nielsen to license our patents nii support of Nielsens



audience measurement across more than 95c/ of the television shows broadcast in the United States and to

provide development services for Nielsens new ligital Media Manager content identification and management

system

On July 2009 we commenced operation
of two joint ventures with Nielsen In connection with these joint

ventures we terminated our agreement
with Nielsen dated as of October 2007 to enter into the joint venture

agreements and entered into new patent license agreement Under the first joint venture TVaura 1_If

Digimarc
and Nielsen engage in the development of copyright filtering solutions royalty/audit solutions for

online video and audio rights organi/ations guilds or other organizations involved in the reconciliation of

yal ties res id ua Is and other pay ii ie nt and other related prod oct nde the sec md joint venture TV aura

Mobile .1 11 marc and ie sen en gage
in the de ye pmen of ccitt in enhanced te levis df en ng and

other related products
We proicle

technical and development services to TVaura 1.1 .s business and will

continue to do so through the term of the joint venture ligimarc and Nielsen each own approximately one half

of each joint venture

On April 30 2t ID following our Annual Meeting and approval by our shareholders we changed our state

of incorporation
from lelaware to Oregon by means of merger into newly formed wholly owned Oregon

subsidiary

On October 2010 we entered into patent licensing arrangement
with IV ligital Multimedia Inventions

.1_C Delaware limited liability company affiliated with Intellectual VenturesIV pursuant to which we

granted an exclusive license to suhlicense subject to pre-existing
encumbrances and grant-hack license 597

patents and patent applications held by us We retained patents
and patent applications that are not

subject to the exclusive license as well as 26 patents and 26 patent applications
for which we hold rights with

third parties

Fl nanc al imformation about geographic areas is included in Note of our financial statements

Customers and Business Iartners

ur revenues are generated through commercial and government applications of our technology We

generate majority of our revenue from service arid license fees paid to us under significant longterm contracts

with the Central Banks Nielsen Intellectual Ventures and our joint venture with Nielsen TVaura .1.C The

remainder of our revenues are generated primarily
from patent and technology license fees and royalties paid by

commercial business partners providing media identification and management solutions to movie studios and

music labels television hroadcaster.c reative professionals and other customers around the world Patent and

technology licensing
is expected to continue to contribute most of the revenues from our non-government

customers for the foreseeable future

In 2010 revenues from government contracts accounted for approximately 33/c of our total revenue and

revenues generated under our contract with the Central Banks accounted for approximately 90/c of revetlue

generated under our government contracts As part of our work with government customers we must comply

with and are affected by laws and regulations relating to the award administration and performance of

government contracts Government contract laws and regulations afiect how we do business with our government

customers and in some instances impose added costs on our business

In some instances these laws and regulations impose terms or rights that are more favorable to the

government than those typically available to commercial parties in negotiated transactions 1-or example

government agency may terminate any of our contracts and in general subcontracts at its convenience as well

as for default based on performance Upon termination for convenience of fixed-price type contract we

normally are entitled to receive the purchase price for delivered items reimbursement for allowable costs for



in
pi cess and an al Ii wance for profit on he contract or adjustment for loss iF

completion of performance
\\ iitild hits resulted in loss Ipon ternitnat ion for convenience of cost reimbursement contract we normally
tie Ilililell to eiiiihnrseiiient of allowable Costs plus portion if the lee

liii eiI\ ci ilitleilt contracts typically span one or more base
years and multiple option years government

teetiL iici al has the right to hot exercise option periods and may not exercise an option period if the
agency

is tot sitist ted with our performance ott the contract

111101 iilatioit about customers that accounted for lOe/ or more of revenue in the last three years is included in

Note ii itui- imiaticial stateiiiemils

IruIucts an1 Serb ices

pros ide iiiedia identification and management solutions to commercial entities and government
tlsti 11115 aitd Icettse our technology to other solution providers Our largest government customer is the Central

tilt lii imti ss has for several ears been developing deploying supporting and continuing to enhance

s\ stein to deter digital counterfeiting of currency using personal computers and digital reprographics

license our techiitologv pruitarily to commercial entities who use our technology ini1 patented inventions
to uddiess

lipporfuutiuties iii the media and entertainment industry Commercial customers use range of solutions
1111 1111 Iusiiless partners and us to identify track manage and protect content as it is distributed and
oiisiuitiel either digitally or physically -and to enable new consumer applications to access networks and

ilIlOrtIhIttoil iou peisotial Coiiiputers and mobile devices Many movie studios record labels broadcasters
Rails professionals and other customers rely on digital watermarking as costeffective means to

detei ptiae and illegal use of movies music and images

hiOteit eiltertaimiiuietit content froiui
copyright infringement

tack uuii iiioiiitor entertainment content for rights usage and licensing compliance

iitoiiltii IS eituseiuieiits to verity ad placement and measure return on investment

tilt tic tib ff1 tat Itt access search rid market ng capabilities related to mm med content and

citable fair aiid legitiniate use of content by consumers

ie it Il 55 aterii tarks ate easily embedded into all forms If titedia and are imperceptible to human senses hut

It ILL I\ kiectel ciiiilptlters networks or other digital devices like sniariphones tlnlike harcodes and tags
iteriii ate solut iii does not require publishers to give up valuable space in magazines and newspapers nor

it litlpitct the os erall layout or aesthetics If the publication One of our more recent product offerings
icltude intl igi flare mseoveri SI

platform which delivers
range of rich media experiences to its readers on

lieu siiiartphoites iitque to the ligimarc liscover platform is its ability to use various content identification

CL hiilojoCles as iueelel umicluding our patetited digital watertimarking technology

part of our intellectual pioperty marketing initiative and patent monetii.ation our key ohectives in

liutildinc relationships with potential custotilers and partners are to

utake 1rogre toward the realization of our vision arid mission

sPit id he se pe ii ni license program

note effectis eI iiioiieti/e our patent assets

eulci ui age large scale adoption of our technologies by industry leaders

imipios our rnatmeial perfortitatice

liicmease time scale and rate of growth of our software atid services business and

It foriiilatioii for continuing innovation



.iceflsees of our technology or intellectual property include AquaMohile Arhitron ivolution IV

Microsoft Corporation
The Nielsen Company Signum Technologies Verance orporation and Verimatrix Inc

Technology and Intellectual Property

We develop and patent
intellectual property to differentiate our products

and technology mitigate

infringement risks and develop opportunities
for licensing Licensing of our technology is supported by broad

patent portfolio covering
wide range

of methods applications system architectures and business processes

Most of our patents
relate to various methods for embedding and decoding digital information in video

audio and images whether the content is rendered in analog or digital formats The digital
information is

generally
embedded by making subtle modifications to the fundamental elements of the content itself generally

at signal processing level The changes necessary to embed this information are so subtle that they are generally

not noticeable by people during normal use Because the message is carried by the content itself it is file-format

independent 1Iie embedded digital information generally
survives most normal content transformation

procedures including compression edits rotation scaling re-sampling
tile-format transformations copying

scanning and printing

ur patent portfolio contains number of innovations in digital watermarking pattern recognition

sonletinles referred to as fingerprinting digital rights management and related fields To protect our

significant efforts in creating our technology we have implemented an extensive intellectual property protection

program that relies on combination of patent copyright trademark and trade secret laws and nondisclosure

agreements
and other contracts As result we believe we have one of the worlds most extensive patent

portfolios in digital watermarking and related fields with over 63 U.S and foreign patents
and more than 430

U.S and foreigil patent applications on file as of Iecemher 31 2010 Separately we own registered
trademarks

in both the United States and other countries and have applied for additional trademarks We continue to develop

and broaden our portfolio
of patented technology in the fields of media identification and management

technology and related applications and systems We devote significant resources to developing and protecting

our technology and continuously seek to identify and evaluate potential
licensees for our patents

For discussion of activities and costs related to our research and development in the last three years please

read the sections titled Research development and engineering under Item Managements Iiscussion and

Analysis of Financial ondition and Results of Operations

Iarkets

Our technology is used in various media identification and management products and solutions supporting

variety of ied ia objects frI UI es and mu sic to banknotes and secure credentials ach media object enabled

1w our technology creates the potential for several applications
such as

counterfeiting and piracy
deterrence

content identification and media management

authentication and monitoring

linking to networks and providing access to intormation and

enhanced services in support
of mobile commerce

We believe the market for these applications is in the early stages of development and that existing solutions

represent only small portion
of the potential market for our products

services and technology



onipetition

No siiiiIc
cotilpetitor or small itumber of

cinipetitors is dotiiinant in our industr Our Inpetitor vary
le1 infiiie ni the iipllicatiori of our products and services ur business partners afll We generally compete with
ion diLitII

.iteimarkiiig technologies for the securit or marketing budgets of the producers and distributors of
iiiedi.i objeits dociiiiients products and advertising These aIternaties include among other things encryption
based sec un ste ins and technologies and so ut ions based on fl ngerpri nt ng and pattern reci gnition ur
eoiiipetitie position within the digital watermarking industry is

strong because of our large high quality
sophisticated patent position in the proprietary technology of digital watermarking and our substantial and

gros ing airiount of intellectual
property in related media security and management innovations that span basic

techiioloeies applications system designs and business processes Our intellectual
property portfolio allows Us to

iise
pi ipi iet at tech no ogles that are well regarded by iii List liners and part tiers and Iii it avail able to our

onipetitors We coilipete with others in our industry based on the variety of features we offer and traditional

eost/hineht .iiial sis of our technologies against alternative technologies and solutions We anticipate that our
oiiipetitis position within sonic markets may he affected by factors such as reluctance to adopt new
tcclinolioies and by changes iii government regulations

Backlog

Rased oii piotected conlmitillents we have for the periods under contract with our respective customers we
.iiiti pate our current contracts as of leceniher 31 20l will generate at feast ruinimiluill of million in

reserine through early 2115 the remaining terni of these contracts We expect approximately S29 million of this

.Iiiiouiil to be iccogiiiied as revenue during 211 Sonte factors that lead to increased backlog include

contracts with iie custoniers

ierics als with ctirreiit custorliems

add lii lick rs to ei rrent List flue rs and

coiitr ti ts ith longer contractual periods replacing contracts with shorter contractual periods

Sonic factors that lead to decreased backlog include

recognition of revenue associated with backlog currentl in place

Lonitracts ss itli shorter contractual periods tcpfaciiig contracts with longer contractual periods

niodificattons to esisting contracts and

contracts ending ith existing custoiiiers

lie nuts of these factors anuiottg others dictates whether our backlog increases or decreases for any given
per ic.nl un hiickloi iiia iiot result in actual revenue in any particular period because the orders awards and
Otitik ts included iii our backlog illay he suhect to modification cancellation or suspension We may not realie
eseniuc oil certain contracts orders or awards included in our backlog or the timing of

any realiation may
LllanLe

Impo%ees

cceiiihei 211 sse had tt fulltinie etuiplovees including in sales marketing technical
support

.1111 custonuien support iii research developnient atid engitleering and 25 in finance administration
iritoniuiiition tecliiiolog and legal

iti iiuiplo ees ire not covered by an colleeti bargaining agreeiuienit and we have never experienced
ork

stoppage We believe that our relations with our entplovees are good



Available Information

We niake available free of charge through our website at otitt.dgiinare.cont our Annual Reports on

Form IDK Quarterly Reports on Form Current Reports on Form sK and amendments to these and other

reports tiled or furnished by us pursuant to Section 3a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon

as reasonably practicable alter we file these materials with the Securities and Exchange Commission

ITEM IA RISK FACTORS

The following risks relate principally to our business and our status as publiclytraded company the risks

and uncertainties described below are those risks of which we are aware and that we consider to he material to

our business If any of the following risks and uncertainties develops into actual events our business tinancial

condition or resu Its of operations cou Id he materially adversely affected In that case the trading price of our

common stock could decline Our business financial condition results of operations and cash flows may he

affected by number of factors including the factors set forth below

Although we achieved profitability in 2008 and 2010 we may iwl sustain profitability particularly if we

were to lose large contracts

Old ligimarcs ligital Watermarking Business had incurred significant net losses from inception
For the

year ended ecemher 31 2010 we generated net income of $4.2 million which resulted in achieving retained

earnings of iii ill ion ur profitability was pri titan ly due icensi ng arrangements with rhitron and IV

which occurred in the first and fourth quarter of 2010 respectively where our quarterly results reflected net

income On quarterly basis our operating results have been inconsistent Other than the quarters noted above

our only other profitable quarter was for the period August 2X through September 30 200X after our

in tnt nit marc

Maintaining profitability in the future will depend upon variety of factors including our ability to maintain

and obtain more significant partnerships like those we have with the Central Banks Nielsen Arhitron and IV

growth in revenues of our licensees and our efficiency in executing our business strategy and capitaliiing on

new opportunities Various adverse developments including the loss of large contracts or cost overruns on our

existing contracts could have negative effect on our revenues margins and profitability

small numn her of customers account for substantial portion of our revenues and the loss of any

large contract could materially disrupt our business

Iii storical ly we have den sed signi Ilcant portion of our revenues from Ii nii ted number of customers

Four customers the Bank for International Settlements acting on behalf of the etitral Banks Nielsen including

the joint ventures TVaura 1.1 and 1Vaunt Mobile 1.1 .C Arhitron atid IV represented approximately 2/ of our

ic en LiC tt the year tided ecemhe 20 st of ott re ye lilies ct nne tn nit mg term ct tracts genera II

having terms of three to five years with some licenses for the life of the associated patents which could he up to

20 years Sonic contracts we enter into contain termination for convenience provisions If we were to lose such

contract for
any reason our financial results could he adversely afThcted

We expect to continue to depend upon small number of customers for significant portion of our revenues

for the foreseeable future Ihe loss of or decline in orders or backlog from one or more major customers could

red tice our ic yen ties and have mate ni al ad verse effect ott fm nanc al results

We mnav he adversely affected by variability of contracted arrangements

We have frequently agreed to imiodify the terms of contractual arrangements
with our customers partners

and licensees in response to changes in circumstances underlying the original contractual arrangements and it is



likcl that we ss ill 10 51 iii the future As result of this practice the terms oh our contractual arrangements with

cti st uTters part ners and licensees may vary over tine and depending oii the particular modification con Id

hase material adverse effect on our financial position results of operations or cash flows

significant portion of our revenue ix subject to commercial contracts and development of new markets

that may involve unpredictable delays and other unexpected changes which might limit our actual revenue

in 11iV girel quarter or year

\e derie substantial portions of our revenue from coinnieicial contracts tied to development schedules or

deveiopiiient of tiew markets which could shift for months quarters or years as the needs of our customers arid

tile markets in wh icli they participate change iovern merit agencies and comniercial customers also lace budget

pressures that mitroduce added uncertainty Any sin ft in developnient schedules the riiarkets in which we or our

Ii censees participate ir customer procurenlent processes which are tutside our control and may not be

predictable could result in delays ill bookings forecasted for any particular period could affect tlìe predictability

of ittir quarterl arid annual results arid
iiiight limit our actual revenue in any given quarter or ear resulting in

reduced and less predictable revenue and adversely affecting profitability

We have linited operating history as separate public company and our historical financial information

prior to the spin-off is not necessarily representative of the results we would have achieved as separate

publicly traded company and may not he reliable indicator of our future results

Ihe predecessor Ii naricial statements have been carved out rorn ld Eigitnarc consolidated fi nanc al

st ateiiient and re fleet assu iiipt ions and allocations made by ld lig marc lhe predecessor financial stateme nts

trlot ulk represent what the predecessors Ii nanc al posit ni results of operations and cash flow would have

bee it hi ad it pera ted as st mid me public ci uti pan ft ir tile periods presented ise that we cx pee to

uluese in the future because among other reasons prior to the spitioff the digital waterniarking business ssas

operated Old ligimarc as Part of larger corporate organitation lor tile years ended Ieceniher 31 2W amid

we ipcrated as standalone
coiiipany

for tile full year and as expected our operating costs on stand

tine basis were ft igher than those allocated to the predecessor operations under the shared services ritethodok g\

ied in he predece ss ir financial state nients As resti It tile predece sst in ft rrilation tic tided in ii is ii

ept in on irni It- is not necessarily indicative of what our uture financial posit ion results of operat ions and

cash floss ss ill he ior niiore information see Managenierit Iiscussion and Analysis of Financial ondition and

Results of perationls and our financial statements and related notes included elsess here ill this Annual Report

on Form ftK

lIme market for our products is highly competitive and alternative technology or larger companies may

undermine limit or eliminate the market for our products technologies which would decrease our revenue

and profits

he markets Ii which we corlipete for busi ness are ritense ly competitive and rapidly evolving We expect

ci utipet it roll to ci nit mine rorn hot ii exist rig coniipet tors timid new market entrants We face cornpet it iomt rorn other

conlipanies and froni alternative technology Because the riiarket solutions based on our technologies are still ill

art earI stage of des elopmnerit we also may face competitIon frorii unexpected sources

Alternative technologies that may directly or indirectly cotiipete with particular applications of our

ss aterniiarkinig technologies include

I.ncrvptioni securing data durimig distnibutiomi using secret code so it cannot he accessed except by

ant lion iitl ii sets

omitainers inserting media object itt an encrypted wrapper which prevents the media object fromni

hem
rig duplicated used or content distri hut ion and ramisact ion ruariagemnent



Traditional anti-counterfeiting technologies-a number of solutions used by many governments that

compete far budgetary outlays designcd to deter counterfeiting including optically sensitive ink

magnetic threads and other materials used in the printing of currencies

Radio frequency tags---emhedding chip that emits signal when in close proximity with receiver

used in some photo identification credentials labels and tags

Internet technologies numerous existing and potential Internet access and search methods are

competitive with Iigimarc Mobile systems and the searching capabilities of ligimarc for Images

Iigital fingerprints and signaturesa metric or metrics computed solely from source image or

audio or video track that can he used to identify an image or track or authenticate the image or track

Smart cards badges and cards including semiconductor memory and for processor used for

aLit he nt icat ion and related Purposes and

Bar codes or QR codesdata-carrying codes typically visible in nature bitt may he invisible if printed

in ultraviolet- or infraredresponsive inks

In the competitive environment in which we operate product generation development and marketing

processes relating to technology are uncertain and complex and require accurate prediction of demand as well as

successful management of various development risks inherent in technology development In light of these

dependencies it is possible that our failure to successfully accommodate future changes in technologies related to

our technology could have longterm effect on our growth and results of operations

New developments are expected to continue and discoveries by others including current and potential

competitors possibly could render our services and products noncompetitive Moreover because of rapid

technological changes we may he required to expend greater amounts of time and money than anticipated to

develop new products and services which in turn may require greater revenue streams from these products and

services to cover developmental costs Many of the companies that compete with us for sonic of our business as

well as other companies with whom we may compete in the future are larger and may have greater technical

financial marketing and political resources than we do These resources could enable these companies to initiate

severe price cuts or take other measures in an effort to gain market share or otherwise impede our progress We

may he unable to compete successfully against current or future participants in our market or against alternative

technologies and the competitive pressures we face could decrease our revenue and profits in the future

We nay not realize all the expected benefits of our patent licensing arrangement with Intellectual

Ventures

We recently entered into patent licensing arrangement with IV pursuant to which we granted an exclusive

license to sublicense substantial portion
of our patent assets to IV in exchange for various strategic and

financial benefits We may not realii.e all the expected benefits of our patent licensing arrangement with IV

including the expected full payment of the license issue fee profit participation revenues reduction of patent

prosecution and maintenance costs and full payment for the assistance we provide to IV with respect to the

licensed patents Any failure to realize these expected benefits could have material adverse effect on our

financial position results of operations or cash flows

The joint ventures agreements we entered into with Nielsen may not produce marketable products that

will provide return on investment on the initial cash contributions

IVaura 11 is jointly owned company that we established with Nielsen to focus on the discovery

development and commercialization of copyright filtering solutions royaltyfaudit systems or products far online

video and audio rights organizations guilds or other organizations involved in reconciliation of royalties

residuals and other payments and other related products TVaura Mobile LLC is jointly owned company that

we established with Nielsen to focus on the discovery development and commercialization of certain enhanced

television offerings and other related products



part of these joint ventures we licensed to each of TVaura 11 and IVaura Mobile IA .C all of our

patents and technoltigy not already subject exclusive license grants to other licensees The products

conteiiiplated the joint ventures which are still in the development stage and will
require

additional

iiis estiiieiit and oversight before they can be brought to market If the joint ventures are successlul in developing

these products the products will he new and untested and they may not have ready market

We cannot predict how the market will react to our product offerings or any potential revenue that may or

iiia not he realied We are nonetheless committed to provide financial support to both joint ventures through

ctoher 21 regardless of whether the joint ventures are successful in their product development efforts during

that time ur initial in estnlent in these two joint ventures may result in neither product offerings nor return on

liiCstilkflt

Our joint enture trazsactions with Nielsen may not realize all of their intended benefits

lii connection with FVaura lland iVaura Mobile LI. we may experience

difficulties in Integrating our corporate culture and business objectives with those of Nielsen into the

joint ventures

diversion of our nianagements time and attention from other business objectives

Ii

ig
her than anticipated costs of integration development and operations at the

joi
itt ventures

lit ticulties in hiring or retaining key employees who are necessary to manage the joint ventures or

difficulties in coordinating with an entity remote to our Beaverton Oregon operations

Moreover each of lVaura 1.1 and TVaura Mobile 1.1 is operated as an independent company and

rrned titembers committee We and Nielsen can elect an equal number of representatives to serve on

each members committee lach joint venture plans to develop contemplated products pursuant to an operating

plait that is approved by the members committee Since Nielsen has significant oversight and voting rights with

respect to rilajor business decisions of TVaura LIA and 1Vaura Mobile .1 .C we do not have control over the

iii vent tires operat ins inc tiding business decisions that may affect each joint ventures profitability or

sticces iii tileeting its objectives For any of these reasons or as result tif other factors we may not realite the

anticipated benefits of the joint ventures and our participation in the joint ventures could adversely affect the

resti Its mr other business elf Uris

Ill lisagreement.s between Nielsen and us regarding the strategy and priorities of the joint ventures or

shortage of additional funding for the joint ventures may impede the development ofjoint venture products

which could negatively affect the value of our investment in TVaura LLC and TVaura Mobile LLC

Au disagreements between Nielsen and us regarding development decision or any other decision

smihuititted to either joint ventures members committee may cause significant delays in the development and

commercialization of the particular joint ventures products and technology and could negatively afTect the value

Of our in estment in the joint ventures In addition neither we nor Nielsen have any obligation to fund the joint

ventures beyond the initial cash contributions provided in the Joint venture agreements If the joint ventures are

unable to generate cash sufficient to develop and commercialize their producis and if additional funding is

unavailable from us Nielsen or third parties we may not recognize the intended benefits of the joint ventures

We depend on our management and key employees for ourfuture success If we are not able to retain

hire or integrate these employees we may not be able to meet our commitments

Our success depends to significant extent on the performance and continued service of our management

and our intellectual property team The loss of the services of any of these employees could limit our growth or

nude ru iii tie st nuer relationships



lue to the high level of technical expertise that our industry requires our ability to successfully develop
market sell license and

support our products services and intellectual property depends to significant degree

upon the continued contributions of our key personnel in engineering sales marketing operations legal and

licensing many of whom would he difficult to replace We believe our future success will depend in large part

upon our ability to retain our current key employees and our ability to attract integrate and retain these personnel
in the future It may not he practical for us to match the compensation some of our employees could garner at

other employment In addition we may encounter difficulties in hiring and retaining employees because of

concerns related to our financial performance These circumstances may have negative effect on the market

price of our common stock and employees and prospective employees may factor in the uncertainties relating to

our stability and the value of any equity-based incentives in their decisions regarding employment opportunities
and decide to leave our employ Moreover our business is based in large part on patented technology which is

unique and not generally known New employees require substantial training involving significant resources and

management attention Competition for experienced personnel in our business can he intense If we do not

succeed in attracting new qualified personnel or in integrating retaining and motivating our current personnel
our growth and ability to deliver products and services that our customers require may he hampered Although
our employees generally have executed agreements containing non-competition clauses we do not assure you
that court would enforce all of the terms of these clauses or the agreements generally If these clauses were not

fully enfrced our employees could he able to freely join our competitors Although we generally attempt to

control access to and distribution of our proprietary information by our employees we do not assure you that the

confidential nature of our proprietary information will he maintained in the course of such future employment
Any of these events could have material adverse effect on our financial and business prospects

1211 leading companies in our industry or standard-setting bodies or institutions downplay minimize or

reject the use of our technology deployment may be slowed and we may be unable to achieve revenue

growth particularly in the media and entertainment sectors

Many of our business endeavors such as our licensing of intellectual
property in support of audio and video

copy-control applications can he impeded or frustrated by larger more influential companies or by standard-

setting bodies or institutions downplaying minimizing or rejecting the value or use of our technology negative

position by these companies bodies or institutions if taken may result in obstacles kr us that we would he

incapable of overcoming and may block or impede the adoption of digital watermarking particularly in the

media and entertainment market In addition potential customers in the media and entertainment industry may
delay or reject initiatives that relate to deployment of our technology Such development would make the

achievement of our business objectives in this market difficult or impossible

/.3 if we are unable to respond to regulatory or industry standards effectively or if we are unable to

deEelop and integrate new technologies effectively our growth and the development of our products and
.senice.s could he delayed or limited

Our future success will depend in part on our ability to enhance and improve the
responsiveness

functionality and features of our products and services and those of our business partners in accordance with

regulatory or industry standards Our ability to remain competitive will depend in part on our ability to influence

and respond to emerging industry and governmental standards in timely and cost-effective manner If we are

unable to influence these or other standards or respond to these standards efkctively our growth and the

development of various products and services could he delayed or limited

Our market is characterited by new and evolving technologies The success of our business will depend on

our ability to develop and integrate new technologies effectively and address the increasingly sophisticated

technological needs of our customers in timely and costeffective manner Our ability to remain competitive
wml depend in part on our ability to

enhance and improve the responsiveness functionality and other features of the products and services

we offer or plan to offer



continue to develop our technical expertise and

develop and introduce new services applications and technologies to meet changi ili
custo tilki nced\

and preferences
and to integrate new technologies

We do not assure you that we will he successful in responding to these technological arId iiidiisii

clialleiiges in timely and costeffective manner If we are unable to develop or integrate ness tccliiiolog Iis

effectively or respond to these changing needs our margins could decrease and our release ott ness piodoics and

sers ices and the deployment of our watcrmarking technology could he adversel affected

/4 We may need to retain additional employees or contract labor in the future in order to take advantage

of new business opportunities arising from increased demand which could increase costs and unpede our

ability to achieve or sustain profitability in the short term

We have staffed our company with the intent of achieving and sustaining profitahtlil ur current stattiiig

els could affect our ability to respond to increased demand for our services In addition to titeet aTl\ net eased

deiriand and take advantage of new business opportunities
in the future we may need to increase our ss on kfon cc

hruugh additional employees or contract labor Although we believe that increasing our work tot cc 5511111

potentially support anticipated growth and profitability it would increase our costs If we exper tenet such an

increase in costs we may not succeed in achieving or sustaining profitability in the short leriti

IS Our future growth will depend to some extent on our successful inplenen1alion of our technology in

solutions provided by third parties including partners and suppliers

ur business and strategy rely substantially on deployment of our technology our liceiisees alit1 otlici

third-party
softsare developers and original equipment manufacturers For example otne loitit of oiii ticiiiiolog

is common deployed in image editing applications to permit users of these products to tead data ciiiltiklcd in

iiriagerv and thereby identity ownership and discern the identities of image owners Another tot iii ott out

technology is used in our anticounterfeiting products Our technology is also being deployed as pail of ig itil

inema systems to theatres around the world by companies that integrate technologies and suhs shuts lii

addition we rely on the ability of IV to market our technology to third party
licensees pursuant to the patent

licensing arrangement we entered into with IV in October 2010 If third parties who include our tectiitolog in

their products or otherwise license our intellectual property for use in their products cease to do so ot sse Ioul tot

obtaiti other partners
who will incorporate embed integrate or bundle our technology or these part lets at

unsuccessful in their efforts our efforts to expand deployment of our technology and increase lucetusutig
tes ethics

ss ould be adversely affected onsequently our ability to increase revenues would he ads ci seh .11 let ted intl

uua stiller other adverse effects to our business In addition if our technology does hot Pe1lOht iii atiOt thug to

titarket expectations our future sales would suffer as customers seek other providet

16 .4n increase in our operations outside of the U.S subjects us to risks additional to those to wlsuli we

are exposed in our domestic operations

We believe that revenue from sales of products and services to commercial governitierutaf and otliet

custonlers outside the .S could represent growing percentage of our total revenue in the utitre ittet nat it mat

sales and services are suhect to number of risks that can adversely affect our sales of products and sets ices to

ioistonicrs outside of the .S. including the following

changes in foreign government regulations and security requirements

export license requirements tariffs and taxes

trade harriers

difficulty in protecting
intellectual property

dillicult in collecting accounts receivable

12



currency fluctuations

longer payment cycles than those for customers in the U.S

difficulty in managing Ii re go operations and

political and economic instability

We do not have an extensive operational infrastructure for international business We generally depend on

local or international business partners and subcontractors for performance of substantial portions of our

business These factors may result in greater risk of performance problems or of reduced profitability with

respect to our international programs in these markets In addition if foreign customers in particular foreign

government authorities terminate or delay the implementation of our products and services it may he difficult

for us to recover our potential losses

17 The terms and conditions of our contracts could subject us to damages losses and other expenses if we

fail to meet delivery and other perft.irmance requirements

Our service contracts typically include provisions imposing

development deli
very and installation schedules and milestones

customer acceptance and testing requirements and

other perfarmance requirements

To the extent these provisoms involve performance over extended periods of time risks of noncompliance

may increase from time to time we have experienced delays in system implementation timely acceptance of

programs concerns regarding prograili performance and other contractual disputes If we fail to meet contractual

milestones or other perfarmance requirements as promised or to successfully resolve customer disputes we

could incur liability for damages as well as increased costs lower margins or compensatory obligations in

addition to other losses such as harm to our reputation Any unexpected increases in costs to meet our

contractual obligations or any other requirements necessary to address claims and damages with regard to our

customer contracts could have material adverse effect on our business and financial results

18 Products deploying our technology could have unknown defects or errors which may give rise to

claims against us divert application of our resources from other purposes or increase our project

implementation and support costs

Products and services as complex as those we offer or develop may contain undetected defects or errors

Furthermore we often provide complex implementation integration customization consulting and other

technical services in connection with the implementation and ongoing maintenance of our products Despite

testing defects or errors in our products and services may occur which could result in delays in the development
and implementation of products and systems inability to meet customer requirements or expectations in timely

manner loss of revenue or market share increased implementation and support costs failure to achieve market

acceptance diversion of devekpment resources injury to our reputation increased insurance costs increased

service and warranty costs and warranty or breach of contract claims Although we attempt to reduce the risk of

losses resulting fiomii
warranty or breach of contract claims through warranty disclaimers and liability limitation

clauses in our sales agreements when we can these contractual provisions are sometimes not included and may
not he enforceable in every instance court refuses to enforce the liability limiting provisions of our contracts

for
any reason or if liabilities arise that were not contractually limited or adequately covered by insurance the

expense associated with defending these actions or paying the resultant claims could he significant

13



19 The security systems used in our product and service offerings may he circumvented or sabotaged by

third parties which could result in the disclosure of sensitive information or private per.soiial information

or cause other business interruptions that could damage our reputation and disrupt our business

ur business relies on computers and other information technologies both internal and at customer

locations Ihe protective nleasures that we use may not prevent security breaches and failure to prevent security

breaches may disrupt our business damage our reputation and expose us to litigation and liability part who

is able to circumveiit security measures could misappropriate sensitive or proprietary
inforniation or materials or

cause interruptions or otherwise damage our products services and reputation
and the property of our customers

It tin intended parties htai selisi ye data and in ft trmat ion or create hugs or viruses or otherwise sabotage the

functionality of our systems we may receive negative publicity incur liability to our customers or lose the

confidence of our ctist niters any of which may cause the ternii nat ni or mod if icat ion of our contracts Further

our insurance co\erage may he insufficient to cover losses and liabilities that may result froni these events

In addition we miia he required to expend significant capital and other resources to protect
ourselves

against the threat of security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these breaches Any protection or

remedial inc as tires in av in he available at reas nabl price or at all rita in he entire lv fleet ye if

commenced

20 We are subject to risks encountered by companies developing and relviig upon new technologies

products and services for substantial amounts of their growth or reven tie

ur business and prospects imist he considered in light of the risks and ncertai mit ies to which companies

with ness and rapidly olving technology products and services are exposed Ihese risks include the following

we may he unable to develop sources of new revenue or sustainable growth in revenue because our

current and anticipated technologies products and services may he inadequate or may he unable to

attract if retain ust imners

the intense comupet it ion and rapid technological change in our industry tu Id adversely at feet the

market acceptance of our existing and new products
and services

we may he unable to develop and maintain new technologies upon which our existing and new

prot.lucts and services are dependent in order for our products and services to he sustainable and

conipetitise and in order for us to expand our revenue and business and

our licensees may not he able to successfully enter new markets or grow their businesses limiting the

royalties payable to us and our associated revenues and prof its

Some of our ke technology and solutions front our patent or technology licensees are iii the development

stage on seq tie nt lv pri 11 uct net rp irat ng tu techrn and ut it are ii iiderg iii tech if

og
meal change

and are in the earls stage of mit rod uct ion in the marketplace lays in the ad pt ii of these ducts or ad verse

competitive developments may result in delays in the development of new revenue sources or the growth in our

revenue In addition we may he required to incur unanticipated expenditures if product changes or improvements

arc required Additionally new industry standards might redefine the products that we or our licensees arc able to

sell especially if these products are only in the prototype stage of development It pr changes or

improvements are required success in marketing these products by us or our licensees and achieving profitability

from these products could he delayed or halted We also may he required to fund any changes or improvements

out of operating income which could adversely affect our profitability

21 We may not be able to protect adequately our itellectual properly
amid we may he subject to

infringement claims amid other litigation
which could adversely affect our business

our success depends in part on licensing our proprietar technology lo protect our intellectual property

portfolio we rely on combination of patent copyright trademark amid trad secret rights ontidentiality

procedures and Ii ccii sing arrange mite itt ui ccii sed ci pv ug mid use of mite 11cc il pit pert ir infringement

14



of our intellectual property rights may result in the loss of revenue to us Although we devote significant

resources to developing and protecting our technologies and periodically evaluate potential competitors of our

technologies for infringement of our intellectual property rights these infringements may nonetheless go

undetected or may arise in the future

We face risks associated with our patent position including the potential need from time to time to engage
in significant legal proceedings to enforce our patents the possibility that the validity or enkneahility of our

patents may he challenged and the possibility that third parties will he able to compete against us without

infringing our patents Budgetary concerns may cause us not to file or continue litigation against known

infringers of our patent rights or may cause us not to file for or pursue patent protection for all of our inventive

technology in jurisdictions where they may have value Some governmental entities that might infringe onr

intellectual property rights may enjoy sovereign immunity from such claims Failure to reliably enforce our

patent rights against infringers may make licensing mote difficult If we fail to protect our intellectual
property

rights and proprietary technology adequately if there are changes in applicable laws that are adverse to our

interests or if we become involved in litigation relating to our intellectual property rights and proprietary

technology or relating to the intellectual property rights of others our business could be seriously hanned

because the value ascribed to our intellectual property could diminish and result in lower stock price or we

may incur significant costs in bringing legal proceedings against third parties who are infringing our patents

Effective protection of intellectual property rights may he unavailable cw limited Patent protection

throughout the world is generally established on country-by-country basis We have applied for patent

protection in the U.S and in various other countries We do not assure you however that pending patents will be

issued or that issued patents will be valid or entbrceable Failure to obtain these patents or failure to enforce those

patents that are obtained may result in loss of revenue to us We do not assure you that the protection of our

proprietary rights will be adequate or that our competitors will not independently develop similar technologies

duplicate our services or design around any of our patents or other intellectual property rights

In the ordinary course of building strategic business relationshipa with potential partners we may encounter

companies that we believe are infringing on our patent portlblio When we encounter these companies we believe

ate infringing we try to negotiate license to our patents we are unable to negotiate license and continue to

believe they are infringing on our patents we may file lawsuit and incur legal fees in the process

We are the exclusive licensee under some third-party patents and may need the assistance of these parties if

we choose to enforce any of these patent rights The cooperation of these third parties cannot be assured

Although we rely on some of these technologies for our products or for our licenses to third parties to date the

licensed patents have not been material to our operations

As more companies engage in business activities relating to digital watermarking and develop

corresponding intellectual property rights it is increasingly likely that claims may arise which assert that some of

our products or services infringe upon other parties intellectual
property rights These claims could subject us to

costly litigation divert management resources and result in the invalidation of our intellectual property rights

These claims may require us to pay significant damages cease production of infringing products tenninate our

use of infringing technology or develop non-infringing technologies In these cireumstances continued use of our

technology may require that we acquire licenses to the intellectual property that is the subject of the alleged

infringement and we might not be able to obtain these licenses on commercially reasonable terms or at all our
use of protected technology may result in liability that threatens our continuing operation

Some of our contracts include provisions regarding our mm-infringement of third-party intellectual property

rights As deployment of our technology increases and more companies enter our markets the likelihood of

third party lawsuit resulting Mmi these provisions increases If an infringement arose in context governed by

such contract we may have to refund to our customer amounts already paid to us or pay significant damages or

we may be sued by the party allegedly infringed upon Similarly as we seek to broaden the number of companies
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licensed under our patent portfIio sonic may seek contractual assurances that we will pursue -by litigation if

necessary -their competitors
who use our patented technology hut are not licensed to do so ompliance with

any such contract provisions may require that we pursue litigation where our costs exceed our likely recovery

As part of our confidentiality procedures we generally enter into non-disclosure agreements with our

employees directors consultants and corporate partners and attempt to control access to and distribution Of our

technology solutions documentation and other proprietary infirmation Despite these procedures third parties

could copy or otherwise obtain and make unauthorized use of our technology solutions or other proprietary

intorniaiion or independently develop similar technologies solutions or intoniation The steps that we have

taken to prevent misappropriation of our solutions technology or other proprietary information may not prevent

their misappropnation

22 If our revenue models and pricing structures relating to products and services that are under

development do not gain market acceptance the products and services may fail to attract or retain

customers and we may not be able to generate new or sustain existing revenue

Some of our business involves embedding digital watermarks in traditional and digital media including

identification documents secure documents audio video and imagery and licensing our intellectual property

Our revenue stream is based primarily on combination of development consulting subscription and license

tees front copyright protection and counterfeit deterrence applications We have not fully developed revenue

models for some of our future digital watermarking applications and licensing endeavors Because some of our

products and services are not yet well-established in the marketplace and because some of these products and

services will not directly displace existing solutions we cannot be certain that the pricing structure for these

products and services will gain market acceptance or be sustainable over time or that the marketing for these

products and services will be effective

23 We are involved in pending litigation and an adverse resolution of such litigation may adversely affect

our business financial condition results of operations and cash flows

Ironi time to time in our normal course of business we are party to various legal claims actions and

complaints As part of our patent licensing program we bring claims or counterclaims of patent infringement to

enforce our patent rights Given the uncertain nature of litigation generally we are not able to estimate the

amount or range of gain or loss that could result from an outcome of litigation .itigation can he expensive

lengthy and disruptive to normal business operations The results of complex legal proceedings are often

uncertain and difficult to predict We could incur charges in excess of any currently established accnials and to

the extent available excess liability insurance We are defendant in pending declaratory judgment action

brought by Verance alleging that certain of our patents are invalid or not infringed An unfavorable outcome in

the Verance suit or any future legal proceedings could have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition results of operations and cash flows For additional information regarding the Verance lawsuit in

which we are involved see Item Legal Proceedings and Note 15 ommitments and Contingencies to the

accompanying financial statements

RISK RFiATEI To OUR CAPITAL STOCK

24 Our common stock price may be volatile and you could lose all or part of your investment in shares of

our common stock

lhe price of shares of our common stock niay fluctuate as result of changes in our operating performance

or prospects
and other factors Some specific factors that may have significant effect on the price of shares of

our common stock include

the publics reaction to our public disclosures

actual or anticipated changes in our operating results or future prospects
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strategic actions by us or our competitors such as acquisitions or restructurings

new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws or regulations applicable to our

business

changes in accounting standards policies guidance interpretations or principles applicable to us

conditions of the industry as result of changes in fiiancial markets or general economic or political

nd it 14115

the failure of securities analysts to cover our common stock in the future or changes in financial

estimates by analysts

changes in analyst recommendations or earnings estimates regarding us other comparable companies
or the industry generally and our ability to meet those estimates

future issuances of our common stock or the perception that future sales could occur and

volatility in the equity securities market

25 Our corporate governance documents our rights agreement and Oregon law may delay or prevent an

acquisition of us that shareholders may consider favorable which could decrease the value of your shares

Our articles of
incorporation and bylaws and Oregon law contain provisions that could make it more

difficult fr third party to acquire us without the consent of our hoard of directors These provisions include

supermajority voting requirements for shareholders to amend our organizational documents and limitations on

actions by our shareholders by writien consent In addition our hoard of directors has the right to issue preferred
stock without shareholder approval which could he used to dilute the stock ownership of potential hostile

acquirer On July 200S our Board of Directors adopted rights agreement pursuant to which one

one-hundredth /l of preferred stock purchase right will he issued for each outstanding share of our

common stock In general terms our rights agreement works by imposing significant penalty upon any person
or group that acquires 5f or more of our outstanding common stock without the approval of our Board of

Directors Oregon law also restricts the ability to vote shares of stock acquired in transaction that causes the

acquiring person to control at least one-fifth one-third or onehalf of the votes entitled to he cast in the election

of directors Shares acquired in control share acquisition have no voting rights except as authorized by vote of

the shareholders Although we believe these provisions protect our shareholders from coercive or otherwise

unfair takeover tactics and thereby provide for an opportunity to receive higher hid by requiring potential

acquirers to negotiate with our hoard of directors these provisions apply even if the offer may be considered

beneficial by some shareholders

ITEM IB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

We lease our principal adniinistrative marketing research and intellectual property development facility

which is approximately 460X square feet in si/c and located in I3eaverton Oregon In May 2010 we entered

in to an ame IKI men with the Ill lord to extend the length our foci lit ies lease hr wg Au ust 20 See Note

to our financial statements for further lease related disclosures

ITEM LE IROCEEDIN6S

Verance orporation 1igimarc licensee filed declaratory judgment action against Digimarc in the

United States District ourt in Delaware on September 30 2010 alleging the invalidity and non infringement of

22 patents held by Digimarc Verance orp ligimarc orp 0-cv-X3 -tJNA
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On leccmbcr 2010 Digimarc tiled suit against Verance Corporation in the District of Oregon Digimarc

is seeking payment for breach of contract by Verance Digimarc is seeking payment for breach of contract by

Vcrancc for failure to make payments under the contract Digimarc Corp Verance Corp. V10-1489 JE

ITEM LRESERVEDI

1K



IARI II

ITFM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATEI STOCKHOLDER
NIATIERS ANI ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQtJITY SECURTIES

ur common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Stock Market Ii in October 2X under the symbolIMR closing price of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market was $28.9 on February 23

211 The following table lists the high and low sales prices of our common stock for the periods indicated as

reported by The Nasdaq Global Market

ear Ended Iheernher 31

2011 21$9

high loss High loss

Iii.sl quarter S22.0 14.75 SI 0.4 .60
Second quarter $20.41 SI 6.4 SI 3t 95
Third quarter 23.99 $1 J7 SI S2 $fl

lourih quartcr $32 If $22.56 515.75 513.07

At ehruarv 23 we had 93 shareholders of record of our common stock as shown in the records of

our transfer agent Since many holders hold shares in street name we believe that there is significantly larger

number of beneficial owners of our corn mon stock than the nu tither of record holders

We have ne er declared or paid cash di vi lends on capital stock and we mit ant ic pate pay rig
ii

cash liv idends in the foreseeable future We currently intend to retai ii futurc earnings any to finance the

future growth of our business

In April 2X9 the Hoard of Irectors approved stock repurchase program authoriting the purchase at the

di screl ion of management of up to $5 iii ill ion in shares of our common stock through either periodic open

market or pri ate transact bus at then preval Ii ng market prices through April 30 11 In pri he Hoard

of irectors approved an extension of the stock repurchase program through April 30 211 We have paid

.6 null ion to repurchase .667 shares of outstanding common stock under this program si nec the programs

inception and 53.4 million remains available to repurchase comnion stock under the stock repurchase program

In add it ion to the stock repurchase program described above from nrc to moe we repurchase shares in

ci nrnccm iii nh stock pt exercises to cover exercise price and taxes he fI lowing table sets ti WI Ii iii riliai in

regarding pu ic hases equity securities during the three mont Ii pcri id ended ece ii iber 11

Fatal nunitwr of dollar saluc

shares of shares

ltirhtised as thai ma ci

total number of Aseragi price part of publicly he purchased

shares paid lw announced plans tinder the plans

Period ptirchased share or programs or programs

Month

October 12010 to October 31 2010 6l99 $29.13 $3.4 million

Month

November 2010 to November 30 2010 14129 $29.43 53.4 million

Month

Iecemniher 2010 to lecemher 31 2010 $31.13 53.4 million

total 92999 $29.54

Sin opt iou shares and fully ested restricted stock shares of courimiron st ck itlilield purchased by us iii

satisfaction of required withholding tax liability
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STOCK PERFORMANCE

the following graph compares the performance of our common stock with the performance ofi the

Nasda tT.S Index and ii peer group selected by us The comparison assumes $IX was invested on

october 2X the first day of trading in our common stock at the closing price on that date and in each of the

Rs ti indices at the closing price on that date and assumes reinvestment of any dividends We believe that the

companies in the peer group arc comparable to us in terms of line-of-business market capitalization revenues

and number of employees and therefore comprise an appropriate peer group for purposes of comparing stock

performance The comparisons in the graph are based on historical data and are not indicative of nor intended to

orecast future performance of our common stock

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

$350

$300

$250

EE11

$50

$0

10/17/08 12/31/08 12/31/09 12131/10

.- Digimarc Corporation Nasdaq Index a- Peer Group

INIEXH RETURNS

Ped ears Ending

ompuny Name/Index 10/17/08 12/31/OS 12/31/09 12/31/10

tigimarc Corporation 100 106.03 l5.62 317.57

Nasdaq Index 100 92.15 l33.l 157.31

Peer Group 100 3.69 120.S6 170.73
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Companies included in the Peer Group Index of the stock performance graph are as follows

KX INC ENIWAVE INC MIOLNIX TEIINOIAGILS 1.11

15IISIRIAM INC GLtJ MOI3ILE INC SHTXTICA INC

DEMANITEC IN INSIGNIA SYSTEMS INC SLJPPORT.OM INC

IITEIl NETWORKS INC KEYNOTE SYSTEMS INC VERSAN1 ORI
IIVX INC ORE3COMM INC WARWIK VALLEY TEI.E1IIONE

11S IN P1W SOLUTIONS INC

The peer group does not include IWO companies Arnicas Inc and Kana Software Inc frorii our 2X peer group since

they were acquired in 2110

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and

the notes to the financial statements and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations which are included elsewhere in this report The following tables set forth our selected

financial information as of and for each of the years
in the five-year period ended 1ccember 31 2010 which has

been derived from audited financial statements as of December 31 2010 2009 2X8 2X7 and 2X6 and as of

August 2M and years
ended December 31 2010 2X9 2007 and 2X6 and for the periods August 200

through December 31 2008 and January 2008 through August 2008 The selected financial information

presented may not reflect the results of operations or financial condition that would have resulted had we been

operating as an independent publicly-traded company during the periods presented and is not necessarily

indicative of our future performance as an independent company See Item IA Risk Factors
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Statement of Operations lata

peratiiig te enues

II 155 1iot it etiel1itge

petitni incottie loss

11111 hue loss

.iTfllflLs loss per share

Net iticoiule loss per

shaie hasic

Net nil inue 1k iss per share

diluted

eighted average shares

hut aniling hisic

eiI1hIeI average shires

tiitstanIing diluted

Pt tottuu.i Lilliliugs loss per

share

Net iticoiuic kiss per shiite basic

IIuI di Itited

cighuted is erage shares

il1it5tiiil.lifli basic and

filtiied

siiI tot ihti1liIiiti\ purposes

Balance Sheet lata

Successor Siittessiir Successor

Year Eided

Iccenihcr 31

Ieriod

August 288

through

Iecerntwr 31
2010 289 2008

531.l.S 519.071 57.832

78/ 67Y 70.4

6.151 52.565 357
4.174 52.757 76

0.5 019 0.01

0.55 0.39 0.01

712 7.14 7.156

7.623 7.140 7156

Ireilecessur Iotal IreIessor IreiteesMir

ear IflIe1

Iecenbcr 31

Ierlod

Januar
2008

through

Augu.st

288 288 2007 286

SI 1.95 S19782 $13025 511.071

69/ 7Y/ 69/

836 479 51.31W $3.908

1.415 1.491 55 S2.687

he Id
gill

ia ic/I it ue rge agree ii tent pr tiled that all cash tud cash eq iii vale ruts sh un tern marketable

securities it tud test ri cted cash thee ye referred to as the aggregate cash it Id 11gm marc was treated as

citsll retained Iigimnarc in its carvedout financial statements As result the IresetUrtion ol the financial

siatemlients and operating data of liginuarc during the carveout periods reflect the cash flow of Old

igiiuuarc including its Secure II I3tisines.c ombined with ligimarc For 286 and 287 the consolidated

jesuIts of Id Iigimarc reflected operating losses of $13.1 million and $1.6 million respectively ash

pros ided operations for those sante periods was $9.3 million and $16.3 million respectively Also

capital expenditures br those periods were $10.5 million and $17.7 million respectively

0.2 1.21 0.01 0.38

7.143 7.143 7.143 7.143

Predecessor Pretecessor trelecessor

As of tecenitwr 31

Successor Successor Successor

As of Iccerutwr 31

2010 2009 2008

ash ctshi eqitis dents and short

term niarketiihle securities

otig termii iuiarketahle securities

otil assets

ong terimi iibil it es

Redeeiuiitble 1tLflTrLf stock

$34.78 $42786

$11163

$55765 $50483

525

50

2007 286

As Of

August
288

554.749

$64111

237

54 168

5.744

$52.44

257

50

$32.7 13

$38.45

215

$33

$37.65
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The ftdlowing Mwzagenent 1iscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

ontainsfornard-looking statements relating to future events or thefuturefinancial petformance of Digimarc

which involve risks and uncertainties Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these

forward-looking stazenents Please see the discussion regarding forward-looking statements included at the end

of this discussion under the caption Forward-1Aoking Statements and Item IA Risk Factors for

discussion of some of the uncertainties risks and assumptions associated with these statements

The fidlowing discussion should he read in conjunction with our financial statements and the related notes

and other financial infirmation appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form JO-K

All dollar amounts are in thousands unless othensi.se noted

OvervIew

Digimarc Corporation enables governments and enterprises around the world to give digital identities to

media and objects that computers can sense and recognize and to which they can react Our technology provides

the means to infuse persistent digital information perceptible only to computers and digital devices into all

forms of media content The unique digital identifier placed in media generally persists with it regardless of the

distribution path and whether it is copied manipulated or converted to different format and does not affect the

quality of the content or the enjoyment or other traditional uses of it Our technology permits computers and

digital devices to quickly identify relevant data from vast amounts of media content

Our growth strategy continues to kcus on txth our government and commercial businesses We plan

additional investment in research and development of commercial mobile platform that boosts device specific

capabilities

To protect our significant efforts in creating our technology we have implemented an extensive intellectual

property protection program that relies on combination of patent copyright trademark and trade secret laws

and nondisclosure agreements and other contracts We believe we have one of the worlds most extensive patent

portfolios in the field of digital watermarking and related media enhancement innovations with over 630 U.S

and fircign patents and more than 430 U.S and foreign patent applications on file as of December 31 2010

Most of these patents are subject to an exclusive patent licensing arrangement as described further below

As part of our intellectual property marketing initiative and patent
monetization strategy on October

2010 we entered into patent licensing arrangement
with IV Digital Multimedia Inventions LLC lelaware

limited liability company affiliated with IV pursuant to which we granted an exclusive license to sublicense

subject to pre-existing encumbrances and grant-back license 597 patents and 288 patent applications held by

us We retained patents and 128 patent applications that are not subject to the exclusive license as well as 26

patents and 26 patent applications fir which we hold rights with third parties

We also assigned to IV the related causes of action and other enforcement rights and IV has the sole right

hut not the obligation to prepare file prosecute maintain defend and enforce the licensed patents at its expense

IV may at any time abandon its license or other rights to all or any of the licensed patents in which case certain

licensed patents that IV opts to release revert back to us

We also entered into patent rights agreement pursuant to which we granted IV an exclusive call option to

purchase all or any number of the licensed patents and/or patent applications The agreement further provides for

the grant by IV to us the right to put all or any number of patents within the licensed patents to IV if IV threatens

or commences an action or proceeding with respect to infringement of licensed patent
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The financial aspects of the IV agreement for us include

license issue fee of $36 million paid to Iigimarc in increasing quarterly installments over three

years

2Y of the profits generated from the IV licensing program which profits consist of sublicensing and

other moneti/ation revenue less specified expenses including the license issue fee

IV assumes responsibility for approximately $1 million per year in prosecution and maintenance costs

previously borne by Digimarc

minimum of $4 million of paid support over five years from liginiarc to assist IV in maximiling the

value of the licensed assets and

royalty-free granthack license to the licensed patents to continue Iigimarcs existing business

related to those assets including maintaining and renewing existing patent licenses and providing

software and services

While this arrangement nd tides mm niuni fcc guarantee 11 us variable profit component that is similar to

our typical license arrangements this exclusive license to sublicense arrangement is new marketing approach to

our licensing activities The license issue fee will he recogniied as the quarterly installments are received over

the three year period and as the support services are provided over the five year period

We believe recent intellectual property licensing initiatives we have commenced represent substantial

opportunities for us to grow our license and subscription revenues as well as our service revenues These

initiatives however may require additional investment in our intellectual property enforcement program and

research and development

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

the prepaiat ion of financial statenierits in accordance wit ii accounti
rig principles generally accepted in the

J.S J.S
requires us to make estimates and judgriients that affect the reported amounts of assets

liabilities revenue and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities On an on-going basis

we evaluate our estimates including those related to had debts fixed assets intangible assets income taxes

long-term service contracts marketable securities and contingencies and litigation We base our estimates on

historical experience and on various other
assumptions we believe to he reasonable in the circumstances Actual

results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

Some of our accounting policies require higher degrees of judgment than others in their application These

include revenue recognition on long-term service contracts revenue recognition on license and subscription

arrangements impairments and estimation of useful lives of long-lived assets contingencies and litigation patent

costs stock- based compensation and income taxes valuation allowance We believe the following critical

accounting policies affict our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our financial

staterlients

Revenue recognition

We derive our revenue primarily from development services and licensing of our patent portfolio

Service revenue consists primarily of software development and consulting services The
majority of

service revenue arrangements are structured as time and materials consulting agreements or fixed price

consulting agreements

Royalty revenue originates primarily from licensing our technology arid patents where we receive

royalties as our incommie stream Subscription revenue consists primarily of revenue from the sale of

web-based subscriptions related to various software products which arc more recurring in nature
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Revenue is recogni/ed in accordance with ASC 605 and 985 when the following tour criteria are met

pcrsuasivc evidence of an arrangement exists

ii delivery has occurred

iii the fee is fixed or determinable and

iv collection is prohahic

Some customer arrangements encompass multiple deliverables such as patent license professional services

software subscriptions and maintenance fees If the deliverables meet the criteria in ASC 605 the deliverables

arc divided into separate units of accounting and revenue is allocated to the deliverables based on their relative

lair values The criteria specified in ASC 605 are as follows

the delivered item has value to the customer on stand-alone basis

ii there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item and

iii if the arrangement
includes general right of return relative to the delivered item delivery or

performance
of the undelivered item is considered probable and substantially in the control of the

vendor

lhe Company uses the residual method as allowed by ASC 605 Fair value for the delivered elements is

generally based on the price at which the Company has sold the element separately to another customer

Management applies judgment to ensure appropriate application of ASC 605 including value allocation among

multiple deliverables determination of whether undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of

delivered elements and timing of revenue recognition among others

Applicable revenue recognition criteria is considered separately for each separate unit of accounting as

follows

Revenue from professional service arrangements
is generally determined based on time and materials

Revenue for professional services is recognized as the services are performed Billing for services

rendered generally occurs within one month after the services are provided

Royalty revenue is recognized
when the royalty amounts owed to the Company have been earned are

fixed or determinable within our normal 30 to 60 day payment terms and collection is probable If

the payment terms extend beyond our normal 30 to 60 days the fee may not be considered to be fixed

or determinable and the revenue would then be recognized when installments are due

Subscription revenue is accounted for under ASC 985 Software Subscription revenue are generally

paid in advance and recognized over the term of the license which is generally twelve months or upon

delivery and acceptance if the Company grants perpetual license with no further obligations

The Company records revenue from certain license agreements upon cash receipt as result of collectahility

not being reasonably assured

Deferred revenue consists of billings in advance for professional services licenses and subscriptions for

which revenue has not been earned

As noted above the Companys standard payment terms for royalty arrangements are 30 to 60 days

Extended payment terms increase the likelihood we will grant customer concession such as reduced license

payments or additional rights rather than hold firm on minimum commitments in an agreement to the point of

losing potential advocate and licensee of patented technology in the marketplace Extended payment terms on

patent
license arrangements are not considered to be fixed or determinable if payments are due beyond our

standard payment terms primarily because of the risk of substantial modification present in our patent licensing

business As such revenue on royalty arrangements with extended payment terms are recognized as fees become

fixed and determinable
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Impairments and estimation of useful lives of long-lived assets We periodically assess kng-Iivcd assets

for IlilpaIrrilent whenes ci events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not he recos erable in accordance with the pr visions of AS 36 /roperIr P/wi 101 Lquipnent This

siatenietit requires that long-lived assets and certain ideritif iahle intangibles be reviewed for impairment

ss lieneser eserits or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may nut he

recoserahle Recoserahility of assets to he held and used is measured comparison of the carrying amount of

art asset to future net iindiscounted cash flows expected to he generated by the asset If the assets are considered

to he iiiifatref the iinpairrllerit to be recogniied is measured by the arliount by which the carrying amount of the

assets exceeds the tair salue of the assets Fair value is detertitined based on discounted cash flows or appraised

aliies depending in the nature of the asset Also we periodically res iew the useful lives of longlived assets

ss henes er esents or changes in circumstances indicate that the useful life may have changed If the estimated

useful Its es of the assets do change we adlust the depreciation or artiortitation period to shorter or longer

lxi 111 based oil the circunistances identified

unt ngencies and litigation We pe ri xlicall eva nate all pe riding reate ned in tinge nc or

coriiiiiitrrients if any that are reasonably likely to have
ii

iiiaterial adverse effect on our operations or financial

position We assess the probability of art adverse outcome and determine if it is remote reasonably Possible or

probable as defined in accordance with the provisions of AS 45 ontingencies If inbirmation available

prior to the issuance if iiir financial statements indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or

liability has been incurred at the date of our financial statetnetus and the amount of the loss or the range of

probable loss can he reasonably esttmated then the loss is accrued and charged to operations If no accrual is

tirade for loss contingency because inc or both if the conditions pursuant to AS 45 are not met hut the

probability of an adverse iutcirlie is at least reasonably possible we will disclose the nature of the contingency

arid prs ide an estiiriate of the possible loss or range of loss or state that such an estimate cannot he made

Patent costs ost ass ct ated wit lithe appl icat in and ass ard iif patents in the and various other

lottittrts are capitalited arid artiottilel on straight-line basis oser the terni of the Patents as determined at

ass aid date wit iih aries depetid rig
on the pendency period of the application generally approx mating

se en tee ii years apt alt ted pa ten st tic tide trite rn tl legal ib ir pr fes tia legal fees ivern men Il Ii

ng

fees and translation fees related to obtaittitig the onipattys patent portfolio

isis Is ic tated ss it hi the in ai ii ten ance and ann unity fees if patents are acci ill itt ed if as prepai assets at the

tittie of pay ntent and arnortied over the respective periods generall front one to four years

lie se pate mit ist are cap it li/elI based on iu fete rn ii nat in that he related patents pros de value ii rough

he life of he pate mit II iwe ser we may su hseq tie itt det err iii tie pate ti sh in Id be ahatidi nied ii has bee ii

unpaired which the accuritulated cost including iltaititetiance fees siuld be written off through lecetnher 31
211 abaridonitierit or writeoffs has-c not been riraterial either individually or in the aggregate

Stockbased compensatioti \e account for stock-based coriipensatioti itt accordatice with AS 71

ott/CFiOllOFI .SH-/ ompnoIuon which requires the rnieasurcriierit and recognition of coniperisation for all

stock based assaruis tutade to ertiplovees arid directors including stock options arid employee stock purchases

tirifer stock purchase plan based on estittiated fair values We use the I3lackScholes option pricing model as

liut tmletliiil uI aluatton for stock- based awards Uur tleterrititiation of the fair value of stockbased awards on

the late of grant using nn option pricing titodel is affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding

ittutniher of hrghl complex and subjectise variables hese variables include hut are not limited to the expected

hfe of the award our expected stock price volatility over the teriti of the award and actual and projected exercise

behas iors Althoiijhi the fair value of stockbased awards is determined itt accordance with AS 71 the Black

Schtoles option pricing ittodel requires the input of highly subjective assumptions and other reasonable

assittrtpttorts could provide differ-mg results If we hase low volatility we would have corresponding lower fair

altie if tue stockbased award titan if we had higher volatility The fair value if restricted stock awards

trarited is based ott the fair market s-al tie If our common stock ott the date of the grarrt measuretnent date and

is IeLigitu/el user the estttig period if the related restricted stock
tistrig

the straightline method
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Income taxes valuation allowance We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC 740 income

Thtes leferred income taxes reflect the net tax efkct of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for income tax purposes

valuation allowance is requirel for deterred tax assets if based on available evidence it is more likely than not

that all or st me port it of the asset will tl he tea Ii ted it tie to the nahi
lily to generate so Ii ci nt taxable income

in the period and/or of the character necessary to utilite the benefit of the deferred tax asset The morelikely

thannot criterion means the likelihood of realitation is greater than 50 percent When evaluating whether it is

more likely than nt it that all st irt it in of the def erred tax asset will not he real ited we evaluate all

available evidence both positive and negative that may affect the realitahility of deterred tax assets and that

should be identified and considered in determining the appropriate amount of the sal uation allowance

Basis of Accounting lredecessor Financial Statements

The predecessor financial statements include certain accounts of Old Digimarc and the assets liabilities and

results of operations of Old ligimarcs Digital Watermarking Business that were separated or carved-out

from Old Digimarc The operating expenses
included in the predecessor financial statentents include proportional

allocations of various shared services comnton costs of Old ligimarc because specific identification of the

expenses was not practicable Ihe conlinon costs include expenses front ld ligimarc related to various

operating shared services cost centers including executive finance and accounting human resources legal

marketing intellectual property
facilities and information technology Management believes that the

assumptions underlying the predecessor li nancial statements are reasonable The cost allocation methods applied

to certain shared sers ices cotnition cost centers include the following

Sjieti/ir u/enhi/u1tuol Where the amounts were specifically idetitified to the predecessor or Old

liginiarcs Secure II Business they were classif ted accordingly

Reasonable allocation Where the amounts were not clearly or specifically identified we determined if

reast 11 alit at it in ii iet hint ci Id be applied It ir cx an tjle in the shared services human resources

UR cost center we allocated the costs based on the relative headcount of the predecessor and Old

ligintarc Secure II Business his allocation was based on the assumption that HR support costs

shoukl he relati sely equal per entployee it the intellectual property cost center we allocated the costs

based on the relative tnt tuber of patents that were used by each business

General allocation approach lor consistency when specific
identification or reasonable allocation

method did not scent to fit the situatiot we used general allocation approach This approach

consisted of blended rate based on what we determined to be the printary drivers for shared services

Revenue ratio between the businesses

lropertv and equipment halance.w hich served as proxy for capital expenditures he efTort

expended on capital prtpect is factor itt he cx pene and effort of shared services avoid

fluctuations that occur itt capital spettding we believe that these allocated balances represent

relative tre itd of capital spe ttd ng
bet wee tithe busin In de ternt tnt ng the relative balances of

property we excluded tlte central inftriiatitirt technology assets because they supported the entire

orgattiiatioit

leadct ni itt bet wee ii he businesses

Oilier key assumptions differing from i/ic historical accounting of Old Iigimnarc

as/i All cash balances of Old ligititarc are treated as retained by Iigimarc consistent with the

merger agreetttent between Old Iigittiarc and L- Accordingly restricted cash on the books of Old

tigimarc iltat related directly to its operatioits flowed through to ligintarc in these financial statements

as non-restricted cash included in cash and cash equivalents in the predecessor financial statements

The letters of credit that required the restricted cash remained with Old Digirnarc following its

acquisitiot by
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lueitiie compensanon allocations to cost services ost of incentive compensation related to bonus

and stock compensation charges tor employees in the research development and engineering cost

centers was not considered significant to Old ligimarcs consolidated operations during the periods

reported and were treated as research development and engineering costs in Old Digimarcs financial

statements Ior ligimarcs reporting purposes these incentive compensation costs have been allocated

to cost of services to the extent that their pro rata salary allocations were made to the cost of services

expense category The impact for the reported periods ranged from to 3/ reduction in margins

compared to the results had the allocations not been made

lro-lorna earnni.s loss per share unaudited The weighted average shares outstanding -basic and

diluted of 7143442 was calculated based on distribution ratio of one share of 1igimarc common
stock for every three and onehalf shares of Old ligiinarc coiiiinon stock excluding shares held in

trcasur outstanding at August 255 the late of the spinOH of Digimarc from Old Digimare

Stock cuiciiv All stock activity transactions from stock options restricted stock employee stock

purchase plan and stock compensation was carried on the hooks of Old ligimarc Al net cash from

these activities was retained by ligirnarc and stock-based compensation expense associated with stock

activity was allocated to the predecessor in accordance with the basis of accounting methodology

out Ii ned above

apital lea.se 1igimarc shares various infrastructure activities with ld liginiarc and was charged

for its allocated share of capital lease costs in the forni of allocated depreciation and interest expense

Fbi assets and liabilities associated with the capital leases were carried on the hooks of Old ligimarc

IAa.sehold 1n/rocetPlents igi marc occupies
the majority ld igi marcs Reaverton facility and

assumed the lease and most all related furniture fixtures and leasehold improvements when Old

igimarc completed the spinoff of Digimarc rhe leasehold was recordel as part of property and

equipment on the balance sheet of 1igimarc and as result pro rata depreciation and rent expenses

were allocated to ld Iigimarc

lniercotnpanv ran.sunons With the retention hy 1igimarc of all of ld igimarc cash Diginiarcs

cash balances effectively funded the operatiorm if needed of 011 1igimarc The net difference of cash

needs for operating and capital expenditures to and from 011 igimarc is shown as net activity with

Parent in the Statement of Shareholders Equity All intercompany transactions were el iniinated

Merier related costs All Old liginiarc costs related to the merger of ld Iiginiarc with were

allocated to ld Digimarc hut Digimarc was responsible for payment of the majority of these costs

onunhtnen1s 1II contiPigencus onimitments and contingencies related to the predecessor

operations are included in these financial statements and those relating to Old ligimarc were

excluded

Stock cofll/ePI.satUli espense Stockbased compensation is accounted lr in accordance with

Accounting Standards odilication AS 715 onijensation-Stock oinpensation which requires

the measurement and recognition of compensation for all stock based awards made to employees and

directors including stock options employee stock purchases under stock purchase plan and restricted

stock awards based on estimated fair values Stock compensation expense was allocated to the

predecissor based on combination of specific and shared services resource allocations from Old

iginiarc

lhe financial information in the predecessor financial statements does not include all of the expenses

that would have been incurred had the predecessor been separate stand-alone public entity As such the

predecessor financial information does not reflect the financial position results of operations and cash

flows of ligimarcs current busines.s had the predecessor operated as separate stand-alone public entity

during the period presented in the predecessor financial statements Additionally the predecessor

financial statements include proportional allocations of various shared services common costs of Old

Digimarc because specific identification of these expenses was not practicable Operating Costs of Digimarc
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oil Stafll-llOfle hasis have been higher than those allocated to the predecessor operations under the

shared services methodology applied in the predecessor
financial statements Consequently the financial

positloil results of operations and cash flows reflected in the predecessor
financial statements may not he

ifllicatie of those that would have been achieved had the predecessor operated as separate stand-alone

eiitit for the Ieriol reflected in the predecessor
financial statements

Results of Operationsthe ears Fnded lecember 31 2010 successor and December 31 2009

sucessor

he Io\ 11fl1 lLIICs 1iesCflt our st.ltCWCfltS of operations data for the periods indicated

Year Ended car Ended

leemher3l Dccemhcr3l

2010 2009

Re enue
$12324 $10845

leerise and subscription
18.826

Iota revenue
311 So 19.071

ost ot re dine
6464 6090

ieense uid subscription
236 211

lotal ci ist of ieVCiiLi
67X 6301

piotit

24450 12770

perat \PCflC

Sales and iiiarket tug

3034

Reseatch de elopitient and engineering
5.687 4989

kikial utd administrative
7864 6299

Intellectual property
1.203 ll

lotal operating expenses
18.299 15335

peItiI incolile loss 6151 2.565

55 oiiit veiituies
2180 691

Intetest income net
245 522

litcoine loss bebue provision for income taxes 4216 2.734

ision tr income taxes
42 23

Net titcotite loss
4174 2.757
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ear Ended ear Ended
lhtcniber 31 1ccernbcr 31

2010 209

Re lrlue

Service 40 57
.icciIsc iihl

subscription ô0

tal revenue 1X 1X
s1 if revenue

Ser ice
32

.iCClisC and subscription
_l

Iota cost of revenue
22 33

ross profit

pcrating expenses

Sales and marketing

Research developnient and engineering 26
and administrative

2S

Intellectual property

otal
operating expenses

perating lncoiiie loss

Nil loss troni joint Ventures

Interest no nil

iic lii IC ss he fore pn iv is ii in for ncoiue taxes

Pros sum for income taxes

Net iKoilii

ui mnpro id
operating results for the year ended December 31 2010 was due Primarily to successfully

iut ing oui intellectual property nlonetiation strategy as reflected in the licensing arrangements with Arhitron
and of fset investments in our product initiatives and joint ventures with Nielsen

Revepsue

car Ended lear Ended
Ivember 31 Ikeernlwr 31 Iollar Pertent

2010 2009 Increase IncreaSe

Res ernie

Semrcc
$12 24

icerise and
subscription X.X26 226 0.6X 29c

otat
$31.1 So SI 9071

Re critic as of iota revenue

Ser ice

.icerisc arid suhsiript iOfl 604 434

otal

___.____ ___J__

Ic ri on re eu tie pri man from

the provision of development services to the entral I3ank 1\aura 1.I. joint venture between
igirnarc and ftc Nielsen Company Nielsen from July 2X9 Nielsen between ctoher 2X7 and

in ne 20 and It her government and coot mere al ust rners and

licensing our patents
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Service Service revenue consists primarily of software development and consulting services The majority

of service revenue arrangeiiients are structured as time and materials consulting agrccflleflts or fixed pncc

consulting agreements The majority of our services revenue is derived from contracts with the Central Banks

Nielsen the joint venture TVaura LIX and other government agencies The agreements range from several

months to several years in length and our longer term contracts are subject to work plans that are reviewed and

agreed upon at least annually These contracts generally provide for hilling hours worked at predetermined rates

and to lesser extent for cost reimbursement for third party costs and services Increases or decreases in the

services provided under these contracts are generally subject to both volume and price changes The volume of

work is generally negotiated at least annually and can be modified as the customers needs arise We also have

provisions
in our longer term contracts that allow for specific hourly rate price increases on an annual basis to

account for cost of living variables ontracts with other government agencies are generally shorter term in

nature are less linear in billings and less predictable than our longer terms contracts because the contracts with

other government agencies are subject to government budgets and funding

The increase in service revenue was due primarily to increased program work from the Central Banks

increased services under our joint venture agreement
with Nielsen the completion of government contracts that

are non-linear in nature and support
services related to the IV arrangement

Iieise and subscription License revenue originates primarily from licensing our technology and patents

where we receive royalties as our income stream Subscription revenue consists primarily of royalty revenue

from the sale of our web-based subscriptions related to various software products which are more recurring in

nature Revenues from our licensed products have minimal associated direct costs and thus are highly profitable

The increase in license and subscription revenue was due primarily to the licensing arrangements
with IV

and Arhitron and increased royalties from ivolution offset by decreased royalties from Verance cash basis

customer which chose to not pay its quarterly royalties to us and has sought legal remedies against us See

related disclosures in Part Item l.egal Proceedings of this Annual Report on Form lu-K

We anticipate revenue growth in 2011 from our existing customers and from new customers as we expand

the marketing and monetitation of our intellectual property portfolio

Revenue by Geography

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 Dollar Percent

2010 2009 Increase Increase

Revenue by geography

Domestic $19034 673 $10361 l9

International 12116 l039 L7l l7

total
$31150 $19.07 $12079 63

Revenue as of total revenue

Iomestic 61 45

International _________ _________

lXY lXX

Domestic revenue increased due primarily to the licensing arrangements with IV and Arhitron the

completion of government contracts that are non-linear in nature and revenues received under the licensing and

joint venture agreements with Nielsen

International revenue increased primarily due to increased royalties from ivolution and increased service

revenue from the Central Banks
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osl of Revenue

.erroe ost of service revenue primarily includes costs that are allocated from research development

engineering and sales and marketing that relate directly to pcrfirming services under our customer contracts and

to lesser extent direct costs of program delivery for both personnel and operating expenses Allocated costs
include

salaries payroll tax and benefit factor Incentive compensation and related costs of our software

developers quality assurance personnel product managers business development managers and other

personnel where we bill our customers for time and materiak costs

payments to Outside contractors that are hilled to customers

charges for equipment directly used by the customer

dcpieciat ion charges for machinery equipment and software and

travel costs directly attributable to service and development contracts

Liie.se and suhripum Cost of license and subscription revenue primarily includes

patent or software license costs for
any patents licensed from third parties where the party receives

portion of royalties or license revenue received by Digimarc

internet service provider connectivity charges and image search data tees to support the services

of fered to our subscription customers and to lesser extent

amorti/at iou of capitaluied patent costs

Gros.c Profit

car Inded ear Fnded

December 31 lecember 31 Dollar Percent

2010 2009 lncrewe Increse

iross Prof ii

Ser cc 5860 4755 1105 23%
icense and subscription 8.59 8015 t.575 132%

lotal $2445 12.770 $11 91

iross Prof it as of related revenue components
Service 48 44

icensc and subscription 99 97
total 78

ftc increase iii gross profit primarily reflected the effect of the licensing arrangements with IV and Arhitron

and royalties troni ivolution service revenues under our joint venture agreement with Nielsen and our

agreement with the entral Banks and the completion of government contracts

lhc increase in gross profit as percentage of revenue was due primarily to favorable margins from our

goernnicnt including the entral Banks and Nielsen Joint venture service contracts primarily as result of

improved labor utiluatuon in the variable component of our costs of services and increased revenues attributed to

the licensing arrangements with IV Arhitron and ivolution
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Operating Lpenses

Sales and marketing

ear Ended ear Ended

December ii lecember 31 Iollar Iercent

2010 2009 Increase Increase

Sales and marketing
$3545 $3034 $5 II

Sales and marketing as of total revenue 2Yc 6Yc

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of

compensation benefits and related costs of sales and marketing employees and product managers

travel and market research costs and costs associated with marketing programs such as trade shows

public relations and new product launches

professional services and outside contractors for product and marketing initiatives

incentive compensation in the form of stock-based compensation expense and

charges for infrastructure and centralited costs of facilities and information technology

We allocate certain costs of sales and marketing to cost of service revenue when they relate directly to our

service contracts l-or direct billable labor hours we allocate to cost of service revenue

salaries

payroll tax and henefts factor and

incentive compensation related to our stock compensation plans

We record all remaining or residual costs as sales and marketing costs

The increase in sales and marketing expense
resulted primarily from

increased professional fees of $0.4 million related to developing marketing materials for our patent

monetitation and mobile device market initiatives and

increased contract labor and professional lees of $0.2 million related to the mobile device market in

particular visual search

We anticipate that we will continue to incur sales and marketing costs similar to existing or at potentially

higher levels to support ongoing sales initiatives

Research development and engineering

jear Ended jear Ended

December 31 Ivcember 31 Dollar Percent

2011 2009 Increase Increase

Research development and engineering
$5687 $4989 $698 l4f

Research development and engineering as of

total revenue
2WA

Research development and engineering expenses arise primarily from three areas that support our business

model

Fundamental Research

Investigation of new watermarking algorithms to increase robustness andior computational

efficiency

Mobile device usage models and imaging sub-systems in cameraphones



Industry conference participation and authorship of
papers for industry journals

Survey and study of human and computer interaction models with focus on niuhile devices and

in de Ii

ug of intent

evelopnient of new intellectual propeily including documentation of claims and production of

supporting diagrams and materials and

Research in fingerprinting and other content identification technologies

Platform evelopment

luning and optimization of implementation models to improve resistance to nonmalicious attacks

and routine transformations such as JPF cropping and printing and

Mobile platform creation to leverage device specific capabilities e.g instruction sets and iPtls

Product evelopinent

reation of Online Services Portal to provide campaign management and routing services for the

iscover platform

Iniplementation of webhosted iniage watermark embedder in
support of Discover platform and

Iterative development and release of the Digimarc liscover application for the Lines and

Android marketplace

Research development and engineering expenses consist primarily of

compensation benefits and related costs of software developers and quality assurance personnel

payments to outside contractors

the purchase of materials and services fur product development

incentive compensation in the form of stockbased compensation expense and

charges for infrastructure and centralized costs of facilities and information technology

We allocate certain costs of research development and engineering to cost of service revenue when they
relate directly to our service contracts For direct billable labor hours we allocate to cost of service revenue

salaries

pay ii tax and he ne fits lact and

Ilcent ye compensation related to our stuck compensation plans

We record all remaining or residual costs as research development and engineering costs

Ihe increases in research development and engineering expense resulted primarily from increased

headcount and employee compensation-related expenses from hiring additional engineers and scientists to

facilitate expected growth in service revenue and to increase our investment in research and development

primarily related to the mobile device market in particular visual search

We anticipate that we will continue to invest in research development and engineering expenses at higher
le els to support certain ongoing research and product initiatives
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and administrative

Year Ended Year Ended

Ietember 31 lecember 31 tollar Percent

2010 2009 Increase Increase

General and administrative $7ô4 $6299 $1565 25%

General and administrative as of total

revenue 254 33%

We incur general and administrative costs in the functional areas of finance legal human resources

executive and hoard of directors Costs for facilities and information technology are also managed as part of the

general and administrative processes and are allocated to this area as well as each of the areas in costs of

services sales and marketing and research development and engineering

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of

compensation benefits and related costs

third party and professional fees associated with legal accounting human resources and costs

associated with being public company

incentive compensation in the form of stock-based compensation expense and

charges fur infrastructure and centralized costs of facilities and inkrmation technology

The increases in general and administrative expenses
resulted primarily from

increased professional fees of $0.6 million related to the IV arrangement and investor relations

increased legal and accounting fees of $0.5 million related to the IV arrangement and litigation matters

and

increased stock-based compensation of $0.3 million related to an additional layer of stock-based award

grants

We anticipate that we will continue to incur general and administrative expenses at existing or higher levels

particularly with legal fees related to our current litigation matter while continuing to examine means to reduce

general and administrative expenses as percentage
of revenue in the longer term

Intellectual property

Year Inded Year Fnded

Ieemhcr 31 Iecembcr 31 Iollar Percent

2010 2009 Increase Increase

Intellectual property
$1203 $1013 $1

Intellectual property as of total revenue 44 54

We incur intellectual property expenses that arise primarily from costs associated with documenting

applying for and maintaining domestic and international patents
and trademarks

Gross expenditures for intellectual property costs before reflecting the effect of capitalized patent costs

primarily consist of

compensation benefits and related costs of attorneys and legal assistants

third party costs including filing and governmental regulatory tees and fees for outside legal counsel

and translation costs each incurred in the patent process
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nceiiti\ coiiipensation in the forni of stockbased compensation eXpense tnl

cliaiLes tot tifrastructure and ceiittalied costs of facilities Inl inforitiation technology

he increase in intellectual property expenses resulted primarily from iticreased legal and Ittaitltenatice

related costs associated ith our patent registration activity for our growing patent portfolio

Intellectual propert expenses can vary froiii period to period based on

lie le ci of ctIitili/ed patent activity iiill

JFOsecLitioIl costs and direct labor hours salaries payroll taxes and benefits factor and incentive

Loinpeitsation related to our stock compensation plans related to the patents that were exclusively

licensed to IV that are allocated to cost of revenue

aiiticipate that we ill continue to insest in intellectual property expenses at existing levels

Sloek -/i ed eonpen.sation

ear Ended ear Ended Iollar Percent

Iecernbtr 31 Ihcember 31 Increat Increase

2011 Iccreast Iecrtasc

osi ol ie\enue 373 231 $142

Sales and niarketiiig 192 181 l9
Reseaicl de elopitient and engineering 314 187 127

ieneral and adnnnistrative 2083 1.747 33
Intellectual

propert 37 54
total $2444 $24 2fr

lie tie ieases iii stock-based cuilipensation expense were primanl due to an additional layer of stockbased

aids being expensed pursuant to AS 18 unspensanon Stock mnpenswioPs We anticipate incurring an

additioiiai itiiliion iii stockbased compensation expense through December 14 for asards outstanding as

of ecinihei 211 ft the future effect of stock-based compensation on our financial position and results of

opeiatioils ill be determined by stockbased awards granted in future periods and the assumptions on which the

tie of ih stock based as aids are based

.\eI loss from juilil ventures

ear Ended ear I.fldeI

Ictenlwr 31 Iecemlwr 31 Iollar Iercent

2010 2Xt9 ccrease ecrease

Net loss from butt \etitures $12180 So91 1489 t5

Ibie iicretse iii the net loss front toint ventures resulted primarily front full eat of operations for the joitit

ent lies ii 2111

Interest income net

car Ended eur Ended
Ikcemtwr 31 Ikcernbcr 31 Iollar tcrceni

2010 2N9 Ietrease ccrease

lnteiest niconte net 245 522 2771

he fee tease in in test inc nrte net was due pn mart to It wer interest earned on cash and marketable

securities balances ieflectiiig lower interest rates paid on these balances



Provision for Income Taxes

hrthe year
ended December 31 200 the provision tr income taxes reflects withholding tax expense

in

various foreign jurisdictions The withholding taxes are computed by our customers and paid to foreign

jurisdictions on our behalf There was no provision for federal and state tax expense on net income since the

computed amount was completely offset with available fideral and state attribute carryforwards
In addition we

continue to provide br valuation allowance to offset our net deferrcd tax assets until such time that we are able to

conclude that it is more likely than not the tax assets or portions thereof will be realized

ior the year
ended December 31 2X9 there was no provision for income taxes related to net income

because the colilputation
of taxable income resulted in net operating loss for the period

Digimarc continually assesses the applicability of valuation allowance Based upon the positive and

negative evidence available as of December 31 2010 we concluded that it is not more likely than not that net

deferred tax assets will he utilized Consequently valuation allowance continues to offset our net deferred tax

assets

Results of operationsthe Year Ended December 31 2009 successor compared to the Periods

January 2008 through August 2008 predecessor and August 2008 through December 31 2008

successor

The following tables present our statements of operations data for the periods indicated

Succes.sor Successor Predecessor Totala

Period Period

August 2008 January

Year Ended through 2008 Year Ended

December31 December31 through December31

2009 2008 August 2008 2008

Revenue

Service $10845 $4064 6456 $l052

License and subscription 8226 3768 5494 9262

total revenue 19.071 7832 11.950 19782

ost of revenue

Service 609 2248 3519 5767

License and subscription
211 114 145 259

Total cost of revenue 6301 2362 3664 6026

Gross profit
12770 5470 8286 13756

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing
3.034 1154 1928 3082

Research development and engineering .. 4989 1772 2071 3843

leneral and administrative 6.299 2597 2.349 4946

Intellectual property
1013 304 1102 1406

total operating expenses
15335 5827 7.450 13277

Operating income loss 2565 357 836 479

Net loss from joint ventures 691
Interest income net 522 443 590 1.033

Income loss before provision for income

taxes 2.734 86 1.426 1.512

Provision for income taxes 23 10 II 21

Net income loss $2.757 76 1.4 IS 1491

Used for comparative purposes
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Successor Successor Predecessor blat1

Period

August 2008 PerIod

Year Ended through January 2008 Year Ended
December 31 December 31 through December 31

2009 2008 August 2008 2008

Revenue

Service 57% 52% 54% 530/

license and subscription 43 48 46 47

lotal FCVCflUC 1X 1X
ost ol revenue

Service 32 29 30 29

license and subscription

Total cost of revenue 33 30 30

Gross profit 67 70 69 70

Operating expenses

Sales and marketing 16 IS 16 16

Research development and engineering 26 23 17 19

General and administrative 33 33 20 25

Intellectual property

lotal operating expenses 80 75 62 67

perating income loss 13
Net loss from joint ventures

Interest income net

Income loss before
provision for income

taxes 14 12

Provision for income taxes

Net income 14 l2c

Used for comparative purposes

Our revenue for the year ended December 31 2X$ decreased 4% to $19.1 million from $19.8 million

compared to the combined periods January 2X8 through August 2K8 and August 2X8 through

ecember 2X8 The decrease was primarily the result of lower license and royalty revenues from kw of

our customers based on combination of contractual revenue provisions lower royalty reporting from our

licensees whose revenues were lower and receipt of cash from our cash basis customers whose revenues are

non-linear in nature coupled with the effect of general economic conditions offset in part by increased project

\AUrk from the consortium of Central Banks In addition we incurred higher operating expenses for the periods

during which we operated as stand-alone company
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Revenue

Successor Successor Predecessor Total

Period

August 2008 Period

Year Ended through January 2008 Year Ended 1ollar Percent

December 31 December 31 through 1ecember 31 Increase Increase

2009 2008 August 2008 2008 1ecrease Decrease

Revenue

Service $10845 $4064 6456 $1052 325

License and

subscription 8226 3768 5494 9262 1036 II

Total $19071 $7832 $11950 $19782 711 4YY

Revenue as of total revenue

Service
52% 54% 53%

License and

subscription
43% 48% 46% 47

lotal X% X% 00% X7

tised for comparative purposes

Ihe increase in service revenue for the year
ended December 31 289 compared to the combined periods

January 288 through August 288 and August 288 through December 31 288 was due primarily to

increased revenue from additional program work from the Central Banks and government contract revenues that

are non-linear in nature offset in part by lower consulting revenues from Nielsen including the revenues from

the joint venture TVaura LLC where we were engaged at an accelerated level of services in the initial year of the

contract with Nielsen

The decrease in license and subscription revenue for the year ended December 31 289 compared to the

combined periods January 288 through August 288 and August 288 through 31 288 was

due primarily to lower royalty reporting
and lower receipts of cash from our cash basis customers largely as

result of general economic conditions

Revenue by Geography

Successor Successor Predecessor Total

Period

August 2008 PerIod

Year Ended through January 2008 Year Ended Dollar Percent

Iecember 31 December 31 through 1ecember 31 Increase Increase

2009 2008 August 2008 2008 1ecrease Decrease

Revenue by geography

Domestic 8673 $3425 6274 9699 1026 II

International 10398 4407 5676 10083 315

Total $19071 $7832 $11950 $19782 711 4Y

Revenue as of total

revenue

1omestic

International
55% 56% 47% 51%

Total
100% 100% 100% 100%

Used for comparative purposes
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lomestic revenue decreased fr the year ended 31 289 compared to the combined periods
Januar\ 288 through August 288 and August 288 through December 31 288 due primarily to lower
revenues from Nielsen including the revenues from the joint venture TVaura Ll.C and to lesser extent lower
revenues from our royalty reporting licensees

International revenue slightly increased for the
year ended December 31 2019 compared to the combined

periods January 2008 through August 2008 and August 288 through December 31 288 due primarily
to increased revenue from the Central Banks offset by lower revenues from our royalty reporting licensees

Gross Profit

Successor Successor Iredecesor TotaI

Period

August 20011 PerIod

Year Ended through January 20011 Year Ended Iollar Percent
Iecemhcr 31 December 31 through Iecember 31 Increase Increase

2009 20011 August 2008 20011 Decrease Decrease

Profit

Seivice 4755 $1816 $2937 47S3
license and

subscription 8015 3654 5349 9003 988 II

Total $12770 $547 $8286 $13756 $986

iross Profit as of related

revenue components
Service 44 45% 45% 45
license itill

subscription 97% 97
total 67% 70% 69% 70%

sed for
comparative purposes

The decrease in gross profit dollars for the
year ended Iecember 31 289 compared to the combined

periods January 288 through August 288 and August 288 through December 31 288 primarily
reflect the impact of variations in scheduled payments which are non-linear in nature in certain of our long-term
contracts lower consulting revenues from Nielsen including the revenues from the joint venture FVaura I.L
and to lesser extent lower royalties from some patent and technology licensees as described previously The
decrease in gross profit as percentage of revenue lir the year ended December 289 compared to the

combined periods January 2008
through August 288 and August 288 through lecemher 288 was

due primarily to

revenue mix resulting in lower license revenue as percent of total revenue which carries higher
margin than service revenue and

higher expenses for the year ended December 289 during which we operated as stand-alone

company in the successor financial statements compared to the shared services allocation methodology
applied in the predecessor successor financial statements in the combined periods January 288
through August 288 predecessor and August 288 through December 31 288 successor

perwIni Epense.s

The financial information in the predecessor financial statements does not include all of the expenses
that would hase been incurred had the predecessor operated as separate stand-alone public entity As
such the predecessor financial information does not reflect the operating expenses of Eiglmarcs current
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business had the predecessor
been separate stand-alone public entity during the period presented

in the

predecessors financial statements Additionally the predecessor
financial statements include proportional

allocations of various shared services common costs of 011 lIglmarc because specific identification of

these expenses was not practicable Operating costs of 1igimarc on stand-alone basis have been higher

than those allocated to the predecessor operations
under the shared services methodology applied in the

predecessor
financial statements onsequently the operating expenses reflected in the predecessor

financial statements may not he indicative of those that would have been achieved had the predecessor

operated as separate stand-alone entity for the period
reflected in the predecessor

financial statements

The operating expenses for the year ended lecembcr 31 2009 are consistent with our expectations as

stand-alone entity

SaILS and narketing

Successor Successor Ire1eessr
IotaI

Icrlod leriod

ear Ended August 2008 January 2008 jear Ended

Ikeeniber 31 through through Iecenilwr 31 Iollar Percent

2009 Iecernber 31 2008 August 2008 2008 lecrease lecrease

Sales and marketing
$3034 $1 154 $1 .92X 53.052 545

Sales and marketing as

of total revenue
W%

sd lOt comparative purposes

Ihe decrease in sales and marketing expense
for the year ended Iecenthei 31 2M9 compared to the

combined periods January
2X5 through August 285 and August 285 through leceniher 31 285

resulted primarily from

delayed spending on various projects
due to the effects of general economic conditions oil set in part

by

higher expenses
for the year ended ecember 31 289 during which we operated as stand-akole

company in the successor financial statements compared to the shared services allocation methodology

applied
in the predecessor success ir financial state iient in the nuhi ned pen ods January

through August 285 predecessor and August 2005 through
lecemher 31 2005 successor

Research dt velopment and engineering

Successor Successor Iredeces.sor

PerIod PerIod

icar Ended August 2008 january 2008 jear Ended

lremher 31 through
through leceniher 31 Iollar Percent

2009 lecernber 31 2008 August 2008 2008 Increase lncrew.e

Research dc vet ptuent and

engineering
5495 1.772 $2.07 S3.43 51.1 3W%

Research development and

engineering
as of total

revenue
2W% 23% 7%

Ised tor comparative purposes



lhe increase in research development and
engineering expense for the year ended Iecembcr 31 289compared to the combined periods January 288 through August 288 and August 288 throughDecember 31 288 resulted

primarily from

increased licadcount and employee compensation related
expenses from hiring additional engineers and

scientists to facilitate
expected growth in service revenue and to increase our investment in research

and de ye 14 pme nt and

higher expenses fr the year ended December 31 289 during which we operated as stand-alone
company in the successor financial statements compared to the shared services allocation methodology
applied in the predecessor successor financial statements in the combined periods January 288
through August 288 predecessor and August 288

through December 31 2008 successor

General and administrative

Successor Successor Iredetessor lotal

Period Period
Year Ended August 2008

January 12008
Iccember 31 through through

2009 Iccember 31 2008
August 2008

$6299 $2597 $2349

337 33Y 2Y% 25/

Red tot
comnparati vi purposes

Uhe increases iii general and administrative
expenses fr the year ended teceniher 31 2009 compared tothe combined periods January 288 through August 288 and AUgUSt 288

through December 31 288resulted primarily from higher expenses for the year ended Eecemher 31 289 during which we operated as
stand-alone company in the successor financial statements compared to the shared services allocation
methodology applied in the predecessor successor financial statements in the combined periods January 288
through August 288 predecessor and August 288 through lecemher 31 2008 successor

Intellectual
property

____________________ lredecessor IotaI

Period

January 200$

through

________________ August 2008

$1102

seil for nnpaiat ye purposes

Prior it August 288 the predecessor accounted fr gross expenditures for intellectual
property costs asexpenses On August 288 we began capitalizing patent application and award costs

Ihe decrease inn intellectual
property expenses for the year ended lecemher 289 compared to thecombined periods January 288 through August 288 and

August 2008 through Iecemher 2008
resulted pri man from cap tali icd patent application and award costs aggregating mill ion offset by
expenses related to legal services in support of intellectual

property licensing activities

ienera and ad mu in strati ye

and administrative as

Of total revenue

Year Ended
Ietemher 31 Dollar Iercent

2008 Increase Increase

$4946 $1353 27c

Intellectual
property

Intellectual
property as

41 ktal revenue

Successor Successor

Period

%ear Ended August 2008

Iecemher 31 through
2009 Iecemher 31 2008

$1013 $304

4/

ear Ended

Ircember 31 Dollar Percent

20011 Decrease Ieerease

$1406 $393 28y7

7c/
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Stock-based compensation

ost ol revenue

Sales and marketing

Research development and

engineering

General and administrative

Intellectual property

lotil

Successor Successor Predecessor

Ierlod Period

August 2008 January 2008

through through

Iecember 31 2008 August 2008

$99

38 208

Year Ended

Iecemher 31
289

231

210

Used for comparative purposes

Old ligimarc accounted for stock-based compensation in accordance with AS 718 which requires the

measurement and recognition
of compensation for all stock-based awards made to employees and directors

including stock options employee stock purchases under stock purchase plan and restricted stock awards based

on estimated fair values Stock compensation expense was allocated to the predecessor
based on combination of

specific and shared services resource allocations from Old Digimarc

increase in stock-based compensation expense
for the year ended December 31 289 compared to the

combined periods January
288 through August 288 and August 288 through December 31 288

resulted primarily lroii 1igimarc applying AS 718 with respect to our post spinoil
stuck-based awards for the

year ended lecemher 31 289 during which we operated as stand-alone company compared to the shared

services allocation methodology applied
in the predecessor successor financial statements in the combined

periods January 288 through August 288 predecessor and August 288 through Iecemher 31 288

successor

Net loss from joint ventures

Interest income net

Used br comparative purposes

Successor Successor

Period

Year Ended August 2008

Iccember 31 through

2009 December 31 2008

522 443

Predecessor Total

Period

January 2008 Year Ended Dollar Percent

through Iecember 31 Increase Increase

August 2008 2008 Decrease Iecrease

$691 l0Ok

Predecessor 10151

Period

January 2008 Year Ended tollar Percent

through December 31 Increase Increase

August 2008 2008 Iecrease Decrease

590 1133 511 49%

Iotal1

Year Ended

Iecember 31
288

104

246

Dollar Iercent

Increase Increase

Decrease Decrease

$127 l22

36 l5%

187

1747

69

$2444

SI

422

16

$532

34 85 102 120%

537 959 788 82%

35 51 18 35%

$913 $1445 $999 69%

Successor Successor

Period

Year Ended August 2008

December 31 through

2009 Iecember 31 2008

Net loss from joint ventures .. $69

Used for comparative purposes

lhe net loss from joint ventures for the year ended December 31 289 rellccts the initial operations
of the

joint ventures that started in the second halt of 289

Interest incoflie net
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Flie decrease in interest income net for the year ended Ieceniher 31 2N$ compared to the combined
periods January 2008 through August 288 and August 288

through 1ecemher 288 resulted

primari from lower interest earned on cash and investment balances reflecting combination of slightly lower
.IS erage invcstillent balances and lower interest rates paid on these balances

Provision ftr Income Taxes

liii the year ended December 289 the provision for income taxes reflects
withholding tax expense in

.irious foreign jurisdictions lhese
withholding taxes are computed by our customers and paid to foreign

jurisdictions on our behalf lhere was no provision kr income taxes related to net income because the

coinputatuin of taxable income results in net
operating loss for the period Furthermore valuation allowancehs been recorded to offset our net deferred tax assets until such time that we are able to conclude that it is more

likely than not the tax assets or portions thereof will he realized

lot the period front August 288
through lecemher 31 288 the provision for income taxes reflects

ithholding tax expense in various freign jurisdictions hese
withholding taxes are computed by our customers

iiit paid to oreig tin sdict ions on our behalf There was no provision fr income taxes related to net income
because the computation of taxable income resulted in net operating loss fr the period Furthermore

at ion 1k ance has been rec rded to offset net deferred tax assets until such time that we are able to
conclude that it is more likely than not the tax assets or portions thereof will he realied

O/J liiuna lhe provision fr income taxes reflects expected tax expense from profitability in certain
ci git ii ri sd ic he predece ss if recorded lull al uat ii in allowance against net deferred tax assets at

August 288 due to the uncertainty of realitation of net operating losses As separate legal entity we will not
hemiefit front any of the carry-lurward tax attributes of Old igimarc including net operating loss carryfirwards

I.iquidit and apital Resources

Ietembcr 31 Dterrnbr 31
201 2M$

Working capital $35526 $43503
urrent liquidity ratio 97 12.71
ash cash equivalents and short-terni marketable securities. $3478 $42786

ung- term marketable securities
163

total cash cash equivalents and all marketable securities $45944 $42786

The current liquidity ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities

FIR mill increase in cash cash
eq ti alent and all marketable securities resulted primarily from

0111105 ed operating results driven
primarily from increased revenues the majority of which were

associated with the revenue and related profit contribution from the IV an Arhitron licensing

arrangenlents and royalties front ivolution offset by

iiisestnients iii our business for both capital and intellectual
property initiatives

Lash contributions to the point ventures with Nielsen and

pun chases oh mon stock related to stock opt ion exercises and the vesting of restricted stock

linancial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations if credit risk consist primarily of cash and
cash equis alents niarkejable securities and trade accounts receivable We place our cash and cash equivalents

th inaj banks and banal institutions and at ti miles deposits may exceed insured Ii in its l3ot It short and long
terili marketable securities include federal

agency notes company notes and commercial paper our investment
polui Iequircs the portfolio to be invested to ensure that the greater of $3 million or of the invested funds
wit he as ailable within days notice
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Other than cash used for operating
needs which may include short-term marketable securities our

investment policy limits our credit exposure to any one financial institution or type of financial instrument by

limiting the maximum of 59 of our cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities or $1 million whichever

is greater to be invested in any one issuer except for the U.S government and federal agencies
which have

no limits at the time of purchase Our investment policy
also limits our credit exposure by limiting to

maximum of 40k of our cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities or $15 million whichever is

greater
to be invested in any one industry category e.g.

financial or energy industries at the time of purchase

As result we believe our credit risk associated with cash and investments to be minimal

decline in the market value of any security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-temporary
results in

reduction in carrying amount of fair value To determine whether an impairment
is other-than-temPorarY we

consider whether we have the ability and intent to hold the investment until market price recovery and evidence

indicating that the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary ihere have been no

other_than-temporary impairments
identified or recorded by us

Operating ash How The components of operating
cash flows were

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 December 31 Dollar Percent

2010 2009 Increase Increase

Net income loss
4174 $2757 $6931 251%

Non-cash items
5892 3724 2168 58%

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
366 188 554 295%

Net cash provided by operating activities $l0A2 779 $9653 1.239%

Successor Successor Predecessor Total

Period Period

Year Ended August 2008 January 2008 Year Ended Dollar Percent

December 31 through through December 31 Increase Increase

2009 December3l2008 August 12008 2008 Decrease Decrease

Net income loss $2757 76 1415 $1491 $4.248 285%

Non-cash items 3724 730 1844 2574 1.150 45%

Changes in operating assets

and liabilities 188 9113 8951 162 26 l6%

Net cash provided by used in

operating
activities $779 $8307 $l2l $3903 $3.l24 80%

Used for comparative purposes

Net income loss

The increase in operating
results for the year ended tecember 2010 compared to the year

ended

December 31 289 reflects higher revenues primarily
attributable to revenue received under the licensing

arrangements
with IV and Arhitron and royalty revenues from Civolution offset by increased stock

compensation expense legal and professional
fees related to IV arrangement and consulting and marketing

expenses
related to product initiatives

ihe decrease in operating results for the year
ended December 31 289 compared to the combined periods

January 288 through August 2008 and August 288 through December 31 288 reflect

the reduced gross margin impact from lower revenues as described above under the caption Results of

Operationsthe Year Ended December 31 289 successor compared to the Periods January 2008

through August 288 predecessor and August 288 through lecember 31 288 successor
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higher operational costs for the full year in which we operated as standalone company in the

successor financial statements compared to the benefits received from the shared services cost
allocation

iiiethodology in the predecessor successor financial statements in the combined
periods

January 288 through August 288 predecessor and August 288
through December 31 288

successor

higher stock compensation expense of $1 million for the full
year in which we operated as stand

alone company in the successor financial statements compared to the shared services allocation

niethodology applied in the predecessor financial statements in the combined periods January 2K8
through August 288 predecessor and August 288 through 1eceinber 31 288 successor and

initial losses of $0.7 million from our joint ventures with Nielsen

Non-cash charges

lhe increase iii non-cash items for the year ended December 2010 compared to the
year ended

ecenihei 31 289 was primarily the result of the net losses front the joint ventures and an additional layer of
stock -based awards

Flie incieasc in non-cash items for the year ended 1ecemher 31 289 compared to the combined periods
January 2008 through August 288 and August 288 through lecemher 31 288 was primarily the result

the shared services allocation methodology applied in the predecessor financial statements to both
de prec at property and equipment st corn pen sat and

the net losses from the joint ventures with Nielsen

Operating assets and liabilities

lhe
primary changes in the operating assets and liabilities for the year ended leceniber 31 2010 compared

to the year ended lecemher 31 289 related to

collection of advanced billings as provided in our contracts with customers offset by

.t educt ion in compensation related liabilities related to accrued bonuses at the 289 yearend that were
paid in 2110 compared with no bonus accrual at December 2010 as result of the elimination of
the bonus program

liii
primary changes in the operating assets and liabilities for the year ended lecernher 31 289 compared

to the combined periods January 288 through August 288 and August 288 through Iecember 31 288
relate io the collection of advanced billings as provided in our contracts with customers offset by the
aim rt i/at ion of deferred revenues

ash flows from investing activities

he primary changes in the investing activities for the
year ended December 31 2010 compared to the yearended ecernher 31 289 related to

increase in investments made in leaseholds primarily related to data center and security improvements
to our corporate offices in connection with the amendment to our facilities lease

increase in investments made in the
patent application and granting process

increase in investments made in joint ventures and

decrease in net activity from investing our cash and cash equivalents and short- and long-term
marketable securities
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Ihe pri mary changes iii the investing activities for the year ended ecenher 2X9 compared to the

combined periods January 2X8 through August 2X and August 2M through lecemher 31 200 relate

to

decrease in investments made in property
and equipment primarily in our information technology area

for computer systems and related equipment used to operate our business

increase in investments made in the patent application and granting process beginning August 2XW

initial investments made in joint ventures that started in the second half of 2009 and

decrease in net activity from investing our cash and cash equivalents and short and longterm

marketable securities

Cash flows from financing activities

The primary changes in the financing activities for the year
ended December 31 2010 compared to the year

ended 1ecemher 2M9 related to the increase in purchases of common stock as part of the stock incentive

plan through net exercises of stock options and for the withholding of shares upon the exercise of stock options

and vesting of restricted stock to satisfy tax withholding obligations offset by the exercise of stock options

The primary changes in the financing activities for the year
ended Lecember 31 209 compared to the

combined periods January 200 through August 2X8 and August 2008 through December 2008 relate

to purchases of comnun stock as part of the stock repurchase program partially offset by the exercise of stock

options

Year Ended Year Ended

Iecrmher 31 201 Iceember 31 2M9

lurchases related to net option exercises $3037

Purchases related to lax withholdings 2.787 177

Purchases related to stock repurchase program Sl.56

lotal common stock purchases
S5..824 $1737

Commitments and Contingencies

Pursuant to the terns of the joint venture agreements
with Nielsen we are obligated to contribute an

aggregate $6.7 million to the joint ventures payable in quarterly installments from July 2009 through ctoher

2011 of which $2.8 million remains to be contributed as of December 31 2010

In May 2010 we entered into an amendment with the landlord ot our corporate
offices to extend the length

of our facilities lease through August 2016 with rent payments totaling $5.3 million

Our obligations under non-cancelable operating
leases for our facilities and various equipment leases which

totaled $4.8 million as of December 31 2010 and are payable in monthly installments through August 2016

Contractual ObligatIons

Payment Iue by Period

less than More than

blat year 1-3 years 3-5 years years

Total joint venture obligations
$28X $2.8X

fotal operating lease obligations
4823 796 1.669 1747 611

lotal obligations
$7623 S96 $1669 $1747 $611
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Future Cash Expectations

On January 26 2011 we repurchased 552536 shares of our conmion stock from Koninldijke Philips

Electronics N.Y in privately negotiated transaction The shares were purchased for an aggregate purchase

price of approximately $14.9 million including transaction fees We funded the repurchase transaction from cash

on hand and the repurchase was separate from the $5 million share repurchase program

As part of our stock repurchase program of the $5.0 million that was authorized as of December 31 2010

$3.4 million remained available to purchase our common stock in the open market or private transactions through

April 30 2011

In connection with the IV arrangement we anticipate our cash flow will improve with

payment of the license issue fee in increasing quarterly installments over three years

consulting fees payable over five years and

additional cost savings because IV has assumed the prosecution and maintenance costs related to the

patents and patent applications that were licensed to IV that were previously borne by us

Webelieve that our current cash cash equivalents and short-term marketable securities balances will satisfy

our projected working capital and capital expenditure requirements for at least the next 12 months Thereafter

we anticipate continuing to use cash cash equivalents and marketable securities balances to satisfy our projected

working capital and capital expenditure requirements

We may use cash resources to fund acquisitions or investments in complementary businesses technologies

or product lines In order to take advantage of opportunities we may find it necessary to obtain additional equity

financing debt financing or credit facilities We do not believe at this time however that our long-term working

capital and capital expenditures would require us to take steps to remedy any such potential deficiencies If it

were necessary to obtain additional financing or credit facilities we may not be able to do so or if these funds

are available they may not be available on satisfactory terms

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than the contractual obligations noted above we do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that

have or are reasonably likely to have current or future effect on our financial condition changes in financial

condition revenue or expenses result of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources that is

material to investors

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

ASU No 2010-17 Revenue Recognition Milestone Method Topic 605 Milestone Method of Revenue

Recognition consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force which provides guidance on defining

milestone and determining when it may be appropriate to apply the milestone method of revenue recognition for

research or development transactions ASU No 2010-17 is effective for milestones achieved in fiscal years and

interim periods within those years beginning on or after June 15 2010 We have assessed the impact of this

standard and do not believe that the provisions of this standard will have material impact on our financial

condition or results of operations

In October 2009 the FASB issued ASU No 2009-13 Revenue Recognition Multiple-Deliverable Revenue

Arrangementsa consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force which eliminates the use of the residual

method for allocating consideration as well as the criteria that requires objective and reliable evidence of fair

value of undelivered elements in order to separate the elements in multiple-element arrangement By removing

the criterion requiring the use of objective and reliable evidence of fair value in separately accounting for

deliverables the recognition of revenue will more closely align with the economics of the revenue arrangements

48



The standard also will replace the term fair value in the revenue allocation guidance with selling price to

clarify that the allocation of revenue is based on entiy-speeific assumptions
rather than assumptions of

marketplace participant
ASE No 2009-13 is effective for revenue arrangcments entered or materially modified

in fiscal years beginning on or after June IS 2010 We have assessed the impact of this standard and do not

believe that the provisions of this standard will have material impact on our financial condition or results of

operations

Forward-I ooking Statements

liii Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forwardlooking statements within the meaning of

Section 21 of the Securities Fxchange Act of 1934 and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 Words such

as may plan should could exlect anticipate intend believe project forecast

estiiiiate continue variations of such terms or similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-

looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-

looking statements or other statements made by us are made based on our expectations and beliefs concerning

future events impacting us and are subject to uncertainties and factors including those specified below which

are difficult to predict and in nianv instances are beyond our control As result our actual results could differ

materially from those expressed in or implied by any such forward-kxking statements and investors are

cautioned not to place undue reliance on such statements We believe that the following factors among others

including those described in Item IA Risk Factors could affect our future performance
and the liquidity and

value of our securities and cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by

frwardlooking statements made by us

concentration of revenues with few customers comprising large majority of the revenues

trends and expectations in revetule growth

our future level of investnent in our business and the joint ventures in which we have invested

including investment in research development and engineering of products and technology

devekpnient of our intellectual properties the acqtiisitiofl of new customers and development of new

market opportunitles

our ability to illiprove margins

anticipated expenses costs margins and investment activities in the foreseeable future

ailticilated revenue to be generated horn current contracts and as result of new programs

variability of contracted arrangements

our P1tttttt lii Littile pem-ds

business opportutiities
that could require

that we seek additional financing

the si/c and grtt Ot of our itiarkets

the existence of international growth opportunities and our future investment in such opportunities

the xi rce of tut nrc re ye tie

our expected short-term and longterm liquidity positflfls

our ability to fund our working capital needs through cash flow from operations

capital itiarket conditions including the recent economic crisis interest rate volatility and other

limitations on the availability of capital which could have an impact on OUI cost of capital and our

bi lit access the capital markets

our use of cash in upcoming qtiitrters

anticipated levels of backlog in future periods
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the success of our arrangements with Intellectual Ventures

protection of our intellectual property portfolio and

other risks detailed in our filings with the Securities and Fxchange omnlission including the risk

factors set forth in Item Risk Factors

We believe that the factors spec fled above and the risk fict irs contained in tein among others on Id

at ect our ut tire performance and the liquidity and val tie of our securities and cause our actual results to litter

materially from those expressed or mplted by forwardlooking statements made by ti or on our behalf Investors
shi in Id understand that it is not possible to predict or identify all risk factors and that there may be other tack irs

that may cause our actual results to differ materially from the forwardlooking statements All frwardIooking
statements made by us or by persons acting on our behalf apply lilly as of the date of this Annual Rep irt We do
not undertake any obligation to publicly update or revise any frwardIooking statements to reflect future events
information or circumstances that arise afier the date of the filing of this Annual Report on Form

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE IISCIASURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the increase or decrease in the

amount of interest income we can earn on our investment portfolio We do not use derivative financial

instruments in our investment portfiulio We attempt to ensure the safety and preservation of otir invested

principal funds by limiting default risk market risk and investment risk We mitigate default risk by investing iii

loss -risk securities At tecemher 2010 we had an investment lorIfoIio If money market funds commercial
securities and I_S givernnient securities including those classified as cash and cash equivalents and short and

longteriii marketable securities totaling $45.9 million The original maturities of our investment portfolio range
from 24 to XX plus lays with an average interest rate of f.6 If market interest rates were to increase

inimediately and uniformly by l0A from levels as of lecemher 31 2tl0 the decline of the foir market value of
he seLl income port li il would not he niateri

IIEM FINANCIAl SIATEMENlS ANI sulILFMFNrARy IATA

ur nanciat Stateitients and the accompanying Notes that arc Ui led as part of this Annual Report are Ii sted

nde Pat-i III tell Ex hi hits and mianc al Statement Sched tiles and are set forth beg iniii ng on page
immediately following the signature page

of this Form lUK

ITEM HAN IN ANI IISA WITH ACOUNrANrs ON ACOUNTIN ANI
FINANIAI IISIASLJRF

ecemher 2010 we dismissed Grant Fhornton 1_I GI as our independent registered public

accounting firm Ihe decision to dismiss fl was approved by the Audit ommnittee if the Board of lirectors

Iuring 2010 there was one disagreement with ilon matter if
accounting principles in which fl

liii ill Liii icated that it Ii sag reed wit Ii ott pr ised accou ii
tig

treat tile lIt concern
rIg rc yen tie iec

ig
iii iii related

to tile patent licensing arrangement entered into hetweemi is and IV ligital Multimedia Inventions Ii an

affiliate of Intellectual Ventures IV on October 2010 Ihe Audit onimittee has periodically discussed

this illattet and its status with Ihe account
rig

reatinent for thls transact in remai ned tin reMil ved at the me
if Il lI5tl1t5sIl

As discussed in Note if our financial statements we are recogniiing license revenue from the transaction

with IV as payments become due and payable because of the extended nature of the payment ternis Ihis resulted

in 5275 of revenue being recogniied iii the leceniher 31 2011 financial statertiemlts
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ITEM 9A CONTROLS ANI PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

our management with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have

carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as of the end of the period covered by

this Form 10-K

Based on our evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our

disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K were effective in

ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded processed summariied and reported within the time periods specified in

the SECs rules and forms and ii accumulated and comnrnnicated to our management including our principal

executive officer and principal financial officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required

disclosure

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Rules l3a-l5f and 15d-15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Our internal

control over financial reporting
is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

U.S GAAP

Any control system no matter how well conceived and operated and because of inherent limitations can

provide only reasonable not absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met Management is

committed to continue monitoring our internal controls over financial reporting and will modify or implement

additional controls and procedures that may be required to ensure the ongoing integrity of our financial

statements

With the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer management conducted

an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established

in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiiations of the

Treadway Commission COSO Based on this evaluation management has concluded that internal control over

financial reporting was effective as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K based on those criteria

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended

December 31 20 to that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control

over financial reporting

Our independent auditors have issued an audit report on the effectiveness of our internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2010 which is included herein
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Hoard of Directors and Shareholders

igi marc Corporation

We have audited ligimarc orporations internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2010
based on criteria established in Internal ontrolIntegrated framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

rganitations of the Treadway Commission COSO Digimarc Corporations management is responsible for

maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal

ontrol Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Digimarc Corporations

internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

l3uard t.Jnmted States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included ohtaiiimng an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

mitatermal weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

based on the assessed risk Our audit also included pethrming such other procedures as we considered
necessary

ri the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external prpoes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

onl in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Hecause of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods arc subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion ligimarc orporation maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 2010 based on criteria established in Internal ontrolIntegrated

PaPn4mtork issued by OSO

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

nited States the balance sheet of Digimarc Corporation as of December 31 2010 and the related statements of

operations shareholders equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31 2010 and our report dated

March II expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements

Is PM 11.1

1rt land regon

tvlarch 2f II
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ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Nonc
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PART III

ertain ml ormat ion required by Part III of this Annual Report on Form lUK is incorporated herein by

reference to the lroxv Statement for our 2011 annual meeting of shareholders which we intend to file no later

than 120 lays alter the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 0K

IIEM 10 IIREIORS ExECJTIvF OFFICERS ANI CORPORATE

ode of

Wi have adopted ode of Business onduct that applies to our principal executive officer principal

financial officer and controller as well as ode of Fthics for Financial Professionals that applies to our

principal financial officer and controller We have made these codes available in the Corporate Governance

section of our website at tttto.djtimart.topi4/uniernwue If we waive or implicitly waive any material

provision of the codes or substantively amend the codes we will disclose that fact on our website within fur

business days

Ihe other in orniat ion requ red by this tern is incorporated herein by reference to the in format ion in the

Proxy Statement which we intend to file with the SE rio later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year

covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K tinder the captions Election of lirector Management Audit

omiii it tee and Sect it ni Be ne lie nersh ep rt ng oh p1 ance

FIEM II EXECUIIVE COMPENSATION

Ihe information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the information in the Proxy

Statement which we intend to file with the SE no later than 120 days afler the end of the fiscal year covered by

ibis Annual Report on Form 10K under the captions Director ompensation and Executive ompensation

onipensation ommittee Interlocks and Insider Participation and ompensation onimittee Report

IlEM 12 sFOWNERSHIP OF CERIAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS ANI MANA
ANI RELATE STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Ihe information required by this item is incorporated herein by ref erence to the information in the Proxy

Statement which we intend to file with the SE no later than 120 lays after the end of the fiscal year covered by

this Annual Report on Form 10-K tinder the captions Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and

Management and qti it ompensat ion Plan Iii fiirniat in

IIEM 13 CERAIN RELAIIONSHIPS AN RELATE IRANSAiIONS ANI DIREClOR

IN WPEN DEN

the in orniat ion required by this ciii is incorporated herein by reference to the information in the Proxy

Statement which we intend to file with the SEC no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by

this Annual Report on Form 0K under the caption Election of Iirectors -- -Ietermination of Independence

and Related Person Fran sact oils

ITEM 14 PRINIPAI ACCOUNTAN1 FEES AN SERVICES

the information required by this item is incorporated herei ii by reference to the inforniat ion in the Proxy

Statement which we intend to file with the SE no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal
year covered by

this Annual Report on Form 10K under the caption Audit Fees
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iTEM IS iXI1iBiiS ANI FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The following documents are tiled as part of this Annual Report on Form 10K

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm KPMi 1.1 .P

ii Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Ii rm Ihornton

iii Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting iriu grant lhornton

iv Balance Sheets as of Iecembcr 2010 and 2Xt

Statements of Operations for the years ended 1ecenther 31 2010 and 2X$ the Period August 2008

through leceniher 31 288 and the Period January 2008 through August 288

vi Statements of Shareholders lquity for the years ended December 31 2010 and 289 the Period

August 288 through Iecemher 31 288 and the Period January 2008 through August 288

vii Statements of ash Flows for the years ended December 31 2010 and 289 the Period August 288

through December 31 288 and the Period January 288 through August 288

viii Notes to inane Statements

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted since they are not required or are not applicable or the required information

is shown in the fl nanc ia statements or related notes

a3 Exhibits

See the Fxhihit Index at page of this Annual Report on Form 10K

IVaura iI Financial Statements Ievelopment Stage Company

The following documents are filed as part of thts Annual Report on Form 10-K

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm -- KPMG 1.1 .P

ii Balance Sheets as of Iecemher 31 2010 and 289

iii Statements of Operations for the year
ended Iecemher 31 2010 the Period June II 289 inception

through December 31 289 and the Period June 11289 inception through December 31 2010

iv Statements of Members lquity for the year
ended Iecemher 31 2010 and the Period June II 289

ncept
Ii ugh ece mber 289

Statements of ash Flows for the year
ended ecemher 31 2010 the Period June II 289 inception

through Iecemher 31 2009 and the Period June II 289 inception through December 31 2010

vi Notes to Financial Statements
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SINATLJ RES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities lschaiige Act of 34 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authoiitcd

llIMAR ORP RATI

Date March 2011
By

\tkhct \lc oincii

11th licf financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities xchangc Act of 134 this report has hecu signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Titk

/s BRtJl DAvis Chief Fxecutive Officer and hairnian of March 2111

Bruce Davis the Board of ircctois Principal

Fxccuti ye Of fleer

Is MictIAu MONNIii hief Financial Officer and Ireasurer March 2111

Michael Mc onnell Principal na nc iid cc niut in

Officer

Is PlriR SMirli Director March 2111

Peter Smith

/5/ JAMIS RiciiAkISON Director March 2011

James Richardson

/s/Wit.i.1AM MiLl iR
____________

lircctor March 2011

William Miller

Is BIRNARU WiiiiNiY lirector March 2111

Bernard Whitney
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

he 13 nI Iii 11 led irs and hare hIll ders

igimarc orporation

We ha audited the
icconipanying balance sheet of Digimarc Corporation as of lecember 31 20 and the

ielated statellients of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for the year ended lecemher 31 2010
Ihese financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys flianagement Our responsibility is to
express

an ip ii in in these financial statements based on our audit

Londucted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public onipany Accounting Oversight
Hoard nited Smates Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about heiher the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis idence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our
opinioii

lii mm opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial
msmt in ig mare orporat ion as of lecembcr 20 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for

the veam ended 1eceniher 31 2010 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

.tlso has audited in accordance with the standards of the Public ompany Accounting Oversight Hoard
ii ted States igmniarc orporatmon internal control over financial reporting as of Iecember 2110 based

on criteria estabhshed in Internal ontra/ Integrated Irwnewor/ issued by the ommittee of
Sponsoring

rgani/ations of the Freadway ommission COSO and our report dated March 2111 expressed an
unqualified mpi

nu in mm the effectiveness if the Companys internal control over fi mine al report ng

Is KPMG lIP

ut and reg in

March .201



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

loard of lirectors and Shareholders

ligimarc orporatlon

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Digimarc Corporation the Company as of

December 31 200 and the related statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for the year

ended leccnibcr 31 2009 and the period from August 2X through December 312008 These financial

statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to alxve present fairly in all material respects
the financial

position of Digimarc Corporation as of December 31 2X9 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for

the year ended December 31 2X9 and the period from August 2X8 through December 31 2X8 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Port land regon

February 24 2010

F-



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Digimarc Corporation

We have audited the accompanying statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows of New

Digimarc Corporation the Predecessor carved-out business unit of Old Digimarc Corporation for the period

from January 2008 through August 2008 These financial statements are the responsibility of the

Predecessors management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Predecessor is not required to have

nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Predecessors internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit

includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the results of

operations and cash flows of the Predecessor for the period from January 2008 through August 2008 in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

As more fully described in Note to the financial statements certain
expenses

of the Predecessor represent

allocations from Old Digimarc Corporation The accompanying financial statements include such allocations and

may not necessarily be representative of the results of operations had the Predecessor operated as an unaffiliated

company during the period presented

Is GRANT THORNTON LLP

Portland Oregon

August 2010
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DIGIMARC CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS

In thousands except share data

Ieceniiwr 31 Iecemher 31

2010 2009

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
6.340 8884

Marketable securities
28441 33902

Trade accounts receivable net
3481 357

Other current assets
1.345 872

lotal current assets
39.607 47228

Marketable securities
11163

Property and equipment net
1.330 1.114

Intangibles net
2174 1.302

Investments in joint ventures
1.029 409

Other assets
462 430

lotal assets
$55765 $50483

LIABILITIES ANI SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
1.519 1.407

Ieferred revenue
2562 2318

Total current liabilities
4.081 3.725

Ieferred rent and other long-term liabilities
525 99

Total liabilities
4606 3824

ommitments and contingencies Note IS

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock l0XX shares issued and outstanding at December 31 2010 and

2X9 50 50

onlnmn stock 7.443.450 and 7205.701 shares issued and outstanding at

1ecemher 31 2010 and 2X9 respectively

Additional paid in capital
49609 49.283

Retained earnings accumulated deficit
.493 2.681

iotal shareholders equity
.1 59 46.659

Total liabilities and shareholders equity
$55765 $50483

See Notes to Financial Statements
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DI CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
In thousands except per share data

Successor Successor Successor Predecessor

lerlod Period

August 2008 January 12008
ear Ended ear Ended through through

Iecemhcr 31 2010 December 31 2009 Ieeember 31 20011 August 12008

Revenue

Ser ice 12324 $10845 $4064 6456
.icensc and subscription 8.826 8.226 3.768 5494

htal revenue IS 1907 7.832 11950
051 Of ieveiiue

Service 6464 609 2248 35 19

.icense and subscription 211 114 145

lotal cost of re enue 678 63 2362 3664
ross profit 24.450 12.770 5470 8286
perating expenses

Sales and marketing 3545 3034 1154 1928
Research development and

engineering 5687 4989 1.772 2.071

kneral and adniinistratjve 7864 6299 2597 2349
Intellectual

property 1.203 1013 304 1102

total
operating expenses 18.299 15.335 5827 7450

perating income Ioss 6151 2565 357 836
Net loss from lint ventures 2.180 691
Interest income net 245 522 443 590

Income loss hetore provision for

iticoilie taxes 4.216 2.734 86 1426
lrovision for income taxes 42 23 10 II

Net income loss 4.174 52757 76 1415

l.arnings loss per share

Net income per share basic 0.59 0.39 0.01

Net income per share diluted 1.55 0.39 0.01

Weighted average shares

outstanding basic 7120 7.140 7.156

Weighted average shares

outstanding diluted 7.623 7.140 7.156

Pro fornia
earnings per share

Net income per share basic
0.20

Net nc iii ie per share diluted
0.20

Weighted erage shares

outstanding basic
7.143

Weighted average shares

outstanding diluted
7.143

See Notes to Financial Statements
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lIIMAR ORIORATION

sTATEMF OF sIIAREIIOUERS EQtJIfl

In thousands except share 18a

Rctaiivd

.tdd itiunal tarning otal

rtfvrrcd stwk onnion stock

________________________________ _____________________________________ III RctII1IIIIBIed eI riit %harelloldcrs

SInreA niou iii Shai rt moo iii capital tficlI ttiuiiI equit

PREDECESSOR
BALANCE AT

DECEMBER 31 2007 34.39 34.X39

ash from Parent stock

activity
23.X62 23X62

Stock compensation allocated

from Parent
914 14

Net activity with Parent 13.237 13.237

Net income L415 1.415

BALANCE AT Au
2008 547.793

SUCCESSOR

August 2XX Stock issued

through spin-off of

Digimarc 100X So 7.143.442 547.736 S47.793

Issuance of restricted common

stock 36.000

Stock compensation

expense
532 532

Net income 76

BALANCE AI
DECEMBER 31200$ 10.0X So 7.279442 4X.26X 76 45.401

Issuance of common stock 25.343 273 273

Issuance of restricted common

stock 22.20

Purchase and retirement of

common stock 24.254 .7370 .737

Stock compensation

expense
2.479 2.479

Net loss
2.757

BALANCE AT

DECEMBER 31 2009 100X 50 7205.70 492X3 2ÔXI 46659

Issuance of common stock 313.532 3045 3.045

Issuance of restricted common

stock 124.560

Purchase and retirement of

common stock 05524 5524
Stock compensation

expense
3105

Net income 4174

BALANE AT
IWCEMBER 31 2010 100X 50 7443.45 549.609 1.493 51.159

See Notes to Iinancial Statements
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GIMARC CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In thousands

Successor Successor Successor Predecessor

PerIod

August 288 PerIod

Yesr Ended Yeiir Ended through January 1200$
December 31 December 31 December 31 through

2010 2009 2008 Augu.st 2008

ash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 4174 2757 76 1.415

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash

provided by used in operating activities

Depreciation and amorti/ation 644 589 98 568

Stock-based compensation expense 3068 2.444 532 913

Net loss from oi nt vent tires 69

Increase decrease in al watice for uht to

accounts 43
Other non-cash charges 405

hanges in operating assets and liabilities

Trade accounts receivable S9 269 762 718

Other current assets 473 3882 4370
Other assets 32 283 40 103
Accounts payable and other accnied

liabilities 507 65 12639 13384

Deferred revenue 275 112 366 677

Net cash provided by used in

operating activities l.4 779 8307 12.210

ash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment 781 76 799
Capitaliied patent costs 914 842 448
Investments in joint ventures 28X 1.1X
Sale or maturity of marketable securities 122176 43.708 95553 136767

Purchase of marketable securities 127.878 50626 118688 37048

Net cash used in investing activities 197 9320 23.659 1.080
ash flows from financing activities

ash from Parent stock activity 23862
Net activity with Iarent 13237
Issuance of common stock 045 273

Purchase of common stock 5824 1.737

Principal payments under capital lease obligations 39

Net cash provided by used in

financing activities 2779 1503 10625

Net increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents 2.544 10044 31972 21755
ash and cash equivalents at beginning

of period 0928 5098 29.145

ash and cash equivalents at end of

period 6340 8.884 18.928 5098

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow intorntatioii

Cash paid for income taxes 42 23 11 II

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing activities

Stock based compensat ion capital ied to patent

costs 37 35

See Notes to Financial Statements



IICORIORATION

NOTES IO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
In thousands except share and per share data

Iescription of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Iohcies

Description of Business

Digimarc Corporation ligimarc or the Company enables governments and enterprises around the

world to give digital identities to media and objects that computers can sense and recognize and to which they

can react The Companys technology provides the means to infuse persistent digital information perceptible

only to computers and digital devices into all forms of media content The unique digital identifier placed in

media generally persists with it regardless of the distribution path and whether it is copied manipulated or

converted to different format and does not affect the quality of the content or the enjoyment or other traditional

uses of it The Companys technology permits computers and digital devices to quickly identify relevant data

from vast amounts of media content

The Company

The ompany was formed as RC 1.1 on June 2008 and began independent operations on on

August 288 through spin-out transaction of the watermarking business of the former Digimarc Corporation

into new company which retained the former name The record holders were provided proportional share of

common stock of Digimarc Corporation in relation to their holdings in the former company The shareholders

received their shares effective October 288 The Company was onginally incorporated as Delaware

corporation but has re-incorporated in Oregon where the corporate offices are located in 2010 following

shareholder approval at its Annual Meeting

Acquisition of Old Digimarc and Separation of DMR Corporation

On June 29 288 the former ligimarc orporation 011 1igimarc entered into an amended and restated

merger agreement as amended by Amendment No dated as of July 17 2008 which we refer to as the Old

Digimarcfl merger agreement with 1I Identity Solutions Inc and Dolomite Acquisition Co wholly

owned subsidiary of L-l pursuant to which Iolomite in transaction which we refer to as the offer purchased

more than 9W7 of the outstanding shares of 011 ligimarc common stock together with the associated preferred

stock purchase rights for 12.25 pe share On August 13 288 following the completion of the offer lotomite

merged with and into 011 liginiarc with 011 Iiginiarc continuing as the surviving company and wholly owned

subsidiary of

On August 288 prior to the initial expiration of the offer 011 Iiginiarc contributed all of the assets and

liabilities related to its digital watermarking business which we refer to as the Iigital Watermarking Business

together with all of Old ligimarc cash to IMR I_I Following the restructuring all of the limited liability

company interests of lMR 11 were transferred to newly created trust for the benefit of Old Iigimarc

record holders DMRC LL then merged with and into lMR orporation and cacti limited liability company

interest of IMRC 1A was converted into one share of common stock of DMR Corporation After completion

of the Old Digiiiiarc/l.- merger IMRC orporation changed its name to Iigimarc Corporation The shares of

common stock were held by the trust until the Form 10 General Form/or Registration of Securities

was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC on October 16 2008 at which time

the shares were distributed to Old 1igimarc record holders as beneficiaries of the trust pro rata in accordance

with their ownership of shares of 011 Iigimarc common stock on August 288 at 53 pm Eastern time the

spinoff record date and tulle lacli Old ligimarc record holder was entitled to receive one share of tigimarc

common stock for every three and one half shares of 011 Digimarc common stock held by the shareholder as of

the spin-off record date and time

F-9



flIORIORAIION

N0TFs To FINANCIAL STATFMENTSContinued
In thousands except share and per share data

se of Istimaie.s

Ihe preparat fl 11 nane iiil statements in accorlance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

req iii res ig iiiarc to make est mates and judgments that affect the reported aniouhits of assets liabilities

ris enue and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities rtain of the Companys
acc uiit ng policies require higher degrees of judgment than others in their application These include revenue

recognition on longterm service contracts impairments and estimation of useful lives of longlived assets

lot ngenc es and liii gat ion pateilt costs stock based conipensat ion and income taxes valuation allowance

ig marc bases its est mates In Ii istorical experience and on various other assu nipt ions that arc believed to be

reasonable in the circuilistances the results If which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying

altics of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from

these estiiiiates under different assumptions or conditions

Recla.s sificatwns

it ai ii pri Pe nt 11 ann ii in lie acc 101 pany ng financial statements and Ite thereto have been

rd assi tied nit orni to current period presetltiit ion These rec lassiheat ions had no material effect on the results

operations IF financial position for
any period Presented

Specifically on the balance sheet the accrued payroll and related costs and accrued merger related

ihi lit es inc items has been reclassed with accounts Payable and other accrued liabilities On the statement

of operations the transitional services line iteni has been reclassed with general and administrative

a.ch Equivalents

Fhi olilpany considers all highly liquid niarketable securities with original maturities of 90 days or less at

the date of acquisition to he cash equivalents ash equivalents include money market fund certificates of

deposit colilniercial paper and investments in government bonds totaling S036 and $K 197 at lecember 31
201 and 2009 respectms ely ash equivalents are carried at cost or amnortited cost which approximates market

Marketable Securites

he oil pan Cl ns iders il invest me mIt wit Ii original mat ri ties over days that mat tire in less than one

year to be short-termii marketable securities Both short- and long-term marketable securities include federal

agency notes company notes and commercial paper ihe omlipany marketable securities are classified as

held ii nit ii ri as of the hal arice sheet date and are rep Irted at aniort ted cost wh icli
approx mates market

decline in the nianket value If any security below cost that is deemed to be otherthantemporary results in

reduction in carrying amount If fair value Ihe impairment is charged to earnings and new cost basis tor the

security is established In determine whether an impairment is other-thantemporary the ompany considers

Ilether ii has the ability and intent to hold the investment unti Ia market price recovery and considers whether

evidence indicating that the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary There have

been no other-thantemporary impairments identitied or recorded by the ompany

Premiums and discounts are amorti.ed or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to

yield using method that approximates the effective interest method Under this method dividend and interest

oct nie ic rec iii ied hell earned

It



DICORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCOfltlflUed

In thousands except share and per share data

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

AS 82 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures defines fair value establishes framework for

incasurilig fair value under generally accepted accounting principles and enhances disclosures about fair value

mcasuremcnts AS describes lair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs of which the first two

are considered observable and the last unobservable that may he used to measure fair value which are the

fi towing

.evcl Pricing inputs are quoted prices available in active markets for identical investments as of the

reporting date

Level 2Pricing inputs are quoted for similar investments or inputs that are observable either directly

or indirectly for substantially the full term through corroboration with observable market data Level

includes investments valued at quoted prices adjusted for legal or contractual restrictions specific to

these investments

Level 3-.-Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment that is inputs that reflect the reporting

entitys own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or

liability Level includes private portfolio investments that are supported by little or no market

activity

AS S25 Financial Instruments allows an entity the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial

and suhscqucnt measurement for specified financial assets and liabilities on contractbycontract basis he

ompany did not elect the fair value option under this statement as to specific assets or liabilities

ihe estimated fair values of the Companys financial instruments which include cash and cash equivalents

short-term marketable securities accounts receivable accounts payable and accrued payroll approximate
their

carrying values due to the short-term nature of these instruments lhe carrying amounts of capital leases

approximate
fair value because the stated interest rates approximate current market rates These items are valued

using either Level or Level inputs

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

Marketable securities at amortized cost $4398 $37402

Cash equivalents
included above 4294 35X

Money market funds included above 1742 4697

The Company records marketable securities at amortii.ed costwhich approximates fair value The fair value

is based on quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets Level input

oncentrations of Business and Credit Risk

significant portion of the ompany business depends on limited number of large contracts The loss of

any large contract may result in loss of revenue and margin on prospective basis Financial instruments that

potcntiatly subject tiginiarc to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents

marketable securities and trade accounts receivable Iigimarc places its cash and cash equivalents with major

banks and financial institutions and at times deposits may exceed insured limits Other than cash used for

operating needs which may include short-term marketable securities with the Companys principal banks

Digimarcs investment policy limits its credit exposure to any one financial institution or type of financial

instrument by limiting the maximum of 5% or $1 XX whichever is greater to be invested in any one issuer

except for the U.S Government and U.S federal agencies which have no limits at the time of purchase The

F-



DIORPORAIJON

NOTES To FINANCIAl STATF
In thousands except share and per share data

olnpanv investment policy also liinns its credit exposure limiting the maximum of 4Yk of our cash and

cash equivalents and marketable securities or 15 million whichever is
greater to be invested in

any one
industry category e.g. tThancial or energy industries at the time of purchase As result Digimarcs credit risk

associated wit ii cash and cash equivalents and investments is believed to he minimal

Equity Method In vestments

ihe ompany accounts for the toint ventures under the equity method of accounting pursuant to ASC 323

Inse.stnent.s Lquitv Method and Joint Ventures nder the equity method investments are carried at cost

plus or minus the Companys proportionate share based on present ownership interests of the investees

profit or loss after the date of acquisition changes in the ompanys equity that have not been recognized in

the investees profit or loss and certain other adjustments Iistrihutions received from the investee such as

dividends reduce the
carrying ins the in st use

The oinpany reviews its equity investments for impairment whenever there is loss in value of an

Investment which is other than ii temporary dccl Inc The ompany conducts its equity investment impairment

analyses in accordance with AS 323 which requires the ompany to record an impairment charge for

decrease in value ot an investment when the decline in the investment is considered to be other than temporary

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of ASC 360 Property P/ant

IFSI b.quzpmeni statement requires that longlived assets and certain identifiable intangibles he reviewed

for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to future net undiscounted cash flows expected to he generated by the asset If such assets are

considered to he impaired the impairnient to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets Fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows

or appraised values depending on the nature of the asset Assets to he disposed of are reported at the lower of the

carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell Through lecemher 31 2010 there have been no such impairment
losses

Research and Ieveloprnent

Research and developuient costs are expensed as incurred as det med in AS 731 Research and
Ie se/o/nien

Software Development osts

tinder AS 985 So/inure software development costs are to he capitalized beginning when products

technological feasibility has been established and ending when product is made available for general release to

customers date the establishment of technological feasibility of the Companys products has occurred shortly

before general release and therefore software development costs qualifying for capitalization have been

immaterial Accordingly the Company has not capitalited any software development costs and has charged all

such costs to research and development expense
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

In thousands except share and per share data

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs arc expensed as incurred Total advertising expenses for the years cndcd December 31

2010 and 2X9 and the period August 2X8 through December 31 2008 totaled $113 $29 and $7 respectively

Advertising costs for the period January 2X through August 288 were not allocated to the predecessor

company as the amount was immaterial

Patent Costs

Costs associated with the application and award of patents in the ti.S and various other countries are

capitalized and amortized on straight-line basis over the term of the patents as determined at award date which

varies depending on the pendency period of the application generally approximating seventeen years

Capitalized patent costs include internal legal labor profssional legal tees government filing tees and

translation fees related to obtaining the Company patent portfolio Such costs were expensed in the predecessor

financial statements

Costs associated with the maintenance and annuity fees of patents are accounted for as prepaid assets at the

time of payment and amortized over the respective periods generally from one to four years These costs were

expensed in the predecessor
financial statements

Revenue Recognition

See Note for detail disclosures of the Companys revenue recognition policy

Stock-Based Compensation

ASC 718 requires the measurement and recognition of compensation for all stock-based awards made to

employees and directors including stock options and restricted stock based on estimated fair values

The Company uses the BlackScholes option pricing model as its method of valuation for stockbased

awards The Companys determination of the fair value of stock-based awards on the date of grant using an

option pricing
model is affected by its stock price as well as assumptiolls regarding number of highly complex

and subjective variables hese variables include hut are not limited to the expected life of the award the

ompanys expected
stock price volatility over the term of the award and actual and projected exercise

behaviors Although the fair value of stock-based awards is deteririined in accordance with ASC 718 and SAB

No 107 Shared-Based Pavnent the Black-Scholes option pricing
model requires the input of highly subjective

assumptions and other reasonable assumptions could provide differing results

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method Under the asset and liability

method deferred income taxes reflect the future tax consequences
of differences between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each year-end teferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary

difTerences are expected to he recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in

tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date Valuation allowances are

established when necessary to reduce tax assets to the amount expected to he realized
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NOTES IO FINANCIAL STATEMENTSCOntinUCd
In thousands except share and per share data

Basis of Accounting Predecessor Financial Statements

The predecessor financial statements include certain accoUnts of Oki Digimarc and the assets liabilities and
results of operations of Old ligimarcs Iigital Watermarking Business that were separated or carved-out from
Old Iigirnarc The operating expenses included in the predecessor financial statements include proportional
allocations of various shared services common costs of Old Digiinarc because specific identification of the

expenses was not practicable The common costs include
expenses from Old Iigimarc related to various

operating shared services cost centers including executive finance and accounting human resources legal
marketing intellectual

properly facilities and in format ion technology

Management believes that the
assumptions underlying the predecessor financial statements are reasonable

lhe cost allocation methods applied to certain shared services common cost centers include the following

Specific identification Where the amounts were specifically identified to the predecessor or Old

Iigimarcs Secure II Business they were classified
accordingly

Reasonable allocation Where the amounts were not clearly or specifically identified management
determined it reasonable allocation method could he applied For example in the shared services
human resources HR cost center management allocated the costs based on the relative headcount
of the predecessor and Old Digimarcs Secure II Business allocation was based on the

assumption that HR support costs should he relatively equal per employee In the intellectual
property

cost center management allocated the costs based on the relative number of patents that were used by
each business

GPurd allocation approach For consistency when specific identification or the reasonable allocation

method did not seem to fit the situation management used general allocation approach
approach consisted of blended rate based on what management determined to he the primary drivers
for shared services

Revenue ratio between the businesses

Property and equipment balances which served as proxy for capital expenditures ihe effort

expended on capital projects is factor in the expense and effort of shared services To avoid
fluctuations that occur in capital spending management believes that these allocated balances

represent relative trend of capital spending between the businesses In determining the relative

balances of
property management excluded the central information technology assets because

they supported the entire organization

Headcount between the businesses

Other key assumptions difierjzi from the historical aounhni of Old Iigimarc

as/i All cash balances of Old Digimarc are treated as retained by ligimarc consistent with the Old
ligimarc/1- merger agreement Accordingly restricted cash on the hooks of 011 Digimarc that

related directly to its operations flowed through to Iigimarc in these financial statements as

non-restricted cash included in cash and cash equivalents in the predecessor financial statements. The
letters of credit that required the restricted cash remained with Old Iigimarc following its

acquisition
hyL-l

Incentive compensation allocatIons to 051 of services Cost of incentive
compensation related to bonus

and stock compensation charges for employees in the research development and engineering cost

centers was not considered significant to Old Digimarcs consolidated operations during the periods

reported and were treated as research development and engineering costs in Old ligimarcs financial
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In thousands except share and per share data

statements For ligimarcs reporting purposes these incentive compeflsatifl1
costs have been allocated

to cost of services to the extent that their pro
rata salary alkcations were made to the cost of services

expense category The impact for the reported period ranged from to 3% reduction in margins

compared to the results had the allocations not been made

Pro-/orma earnings loss per
share unauthted The weighted average shares outstanding-- basic and

diluted of 7143.442 was calculated based on distribution ratio of one share of ligimarc common

stock for every three and one-half shares of Old ligimarc common stock excluding shares held in

treasury outstanding at August 288 the date of the spinoff
of ligimarc from Old ligimarc

Stock activity All stock activity transactions from stock options
restricted stock employee stock

purchase plan and stock compensation was carried on the hooks of Old Iigimarc All net cash from

these activities was retained by Iiginiarc
and stock-based compensation expense

associated with stock

activity was allocated to the predecessor
in accordance with the basis of accounting methodology

outlined above

Capita leases Iigimarc shares various infrastructure activities with Old liginiarc
and was charged

for its allocated share of capital lease costs in the form of allocated depreciation and interest expense

The assets and liabilities associated with the capital leases were carried on the hooks of Old Digimarc

Leasehold improveflwflts Iigimarc occupies the majority of 011 liginiarcs Beaverton facility and

assumed the lease and most all related furniture fixtures and leasehold improvements when Old

Iigimarc completed the spinoff
of Digimarc The leasehold was recorded as part of property

and

equipment on the balance sheet of ligimarc and as result pro rata depreciation and rent expenses

were allocated to Old ligimarc

nteronanv transactions With the retention by Digimarc of all of Old igimarc cash ligimarcs

cash balances effectively funded the operations
if needed of Old ligimarc The net difference of cash

needs for operating
and capital expenditures to and from Old Iigimarc is shown as net activity with

Parent in the Statement of Shareholders Equity All intercompany transactions were eliminatel

Merger related costs All Old Iigimarc costs related to the Old Digimarc/1.- merger were allocated to

Old Iigimarcs Secure II Business Iigimarc was responsible for the payment of the majority of these

costs

ommilmenis Ilul opttingencus Commitments and contingencies
related to the predecessor

operations are included in these financial statements and those relating to Old Iigimarc were

excluded

Stock onIpnstion expense Stock-based compensation is accounted for by Old 1igimarc in

accordance with ASC 18 oinpensation
.Stock ompensatioli which requires the measurenlent

and recognition
of compensation

for all stock based awards made to employees and directors

including stock options employee stock purchases under stock purchase plan and restricted stock

awards based on estimated fair values Stock compensation expense was allocated to the predecessor

based on combination of specific and shared services resource allocations from 011 ligimarc

The financial Information in the predecessor
financial statements does not include all of the expenses that

would have been incurred had the predecessor
been separate stand-alone public entity As such the

predecessor financial Information does not reflect the financial position results of operations and cash

flows of Dlgimarcs current business had the predecessor operated as separate stand-alone public entity

during the period presented
in the predecessor

financial statements Additionally the predecessor

financial statements include proportional
allocations of various shared services common costs of Old
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Iigimarc because specific identification of these expenses was not practicable Operating costs of lIgimarcon stand-atone basis have been higher than those allocated to the predecessor operations under the
shared services methodology applied in the predecessor financial statements Consequently the financial
position results of operations and cash flows reflected in the predecessor financial statements may not be
indicative of those that would have been achieved had the predecessor operated as separate stand-alone
entity for the period reflected in the predecessor financial statements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2110 the Financial Accounting Standards Hoard FASH issued
Accounting Standards UpdateAS No 0- Revenue Re ognuzon Milestone Method Thpir 6051 Milestone Method of Revenue

Reeogton consensus a/the /ASi 1.nlergint lssue.s ii.sk Irce which provides guidance on defining
milestone and

determining when it may he appropriate to apply the milestone method of revenue recognition for
mesearch or development transactions ASI No 2110- is effective for milestones achieved in fiscal years and
Interim periods within those years beginning on or after June IS 2110 lhe onipany has assessed the impact of
his standard and does not believe that the provisions of this standard will have material impact on the financial

condition or results of operations of the unipanv

In ctobcr 205 the lASH issued ASU No 205- 13 Revenue Reornitjon Mulziple-1eliverable Revenue
rrani.neflt onsepjs.s o/ the lAS Eniermjni Is.sue.s iki.sk lorce which eliminates the use of the residual

id
allocating ins iderat in as well as the ii ten that requires objective and reliable evidence of fa

due of undelivered elements in order to separate the elements in multipleelement arrangement By removingthe criterion
requiring the use of ohtectmve and reliable evidence of Fair value in

separately accounting for

deliverables the recognition revenue will more closely align with the economics of the revenue arrangements
the standard also ill replace the term fair value in the revenue allocation guidance with selling price to

larify that the allocation if res ernie is based on entity-specific assumptions rather than assumptions of
marketplace participant ASIJ No 20s- 13 is efhctive 6ir revenue arrangements entered or materially modified
iii iscal years beginnmg on or after June 2111 The Company has assessed the impact of this standard and
foes not believe that the provisions of this standard will have niaterial impact in the financial condition or
results of operat ins of the ompany

Revenue Recognition

Vs dens our revenue primarily from development services and licensing of our patent portfolio

Sers ice res ernie consists primarily of soltware development and
consulting services..lhe

majority of
sers ice revenue arrangements are structured as time and materials

consulting agreements or fixed price
consulting agreements

mya It re en tie in nates primarily fri nim Ii ccii si
rig

mu mccli in
ig

and patent where we receive
royalties as our income stream Subscription revenue consists primarily of revenue from the sale of
sseh-hased

subscriptions related to various software products which are more recurring in nature

Res enue is recogniied in accordance with AS 605 amid o5 when the fdlowing four criteria are met

persuasive evidence if an arrangement exists

ii delivery has occurred

lii the fee is fixed or determinable and

iv collection is Probable



DICORPORATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS Continued

In thousands except share and per share data

Some customer arrangements encompass multiple deliverables such as patent license professional services

software subscriptions and maintenance fees If thc deliverables meet the criteria in ASC 605 the deliverables

are divided into separate units of accounting
and revenue is allocated to the deliverables based on their relative

fair values The criteria specified
in ASC 605 are as follows

the delivered item has value to the customer on stand-alone basis

ii there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item and

iii if the arrangement includes general right of return relative to the delivered item delivery or

performance
of the undelivered item is considered probable and substantially in the control of the

vendor

The ompany uses the residual method as allowed by ASC 605 Fair value for the delivered elements is

generally
based on the price at which the Company has sold the element separately to another customer

Management applies judgment to ensure appropriate application of ASC 605 including value allocation among

multiple deliverables determination of whether undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of

delivered elements and timing of revenue recognition among others

Applicable revenue recognition criteria is considered separately for each separate unit of accounting as

follows

Revenue from professional service arrangements is generally determined based on time and materials

Revenue for professional services is recognized as the services are performed Billing for services

rendered generally occurs within one month after the services are provided

Royalty revenue is rccognii.ed
when the royalty amounts owed to the Company have been earned are

fixed or determinable within our normal 30 to 60 day payment terms and collection is probable If

the payment terms extend beyond our normal to 60 days the fec may not be considered to be fixed

or determinable and the revenue would then be recognized when installments are due

Subscription revenue is accounted for under ASC 985 Software Subscription revenue are generally

paid in advance and recognized over the term of the license which is generally twelve months or upon

delivery and acceptance
if the Company grants perpetual license with no further obligations

The Company records revenue from certain license agreements upon cash receipt as result of collectahility

not being reasonably assured

Deferred revenue consists of billings in advance for professional services licenses and subscriptions for

which revenue has not been earned

As noted above the Companys standard payment terms for royalty arrangements are 30 to 60 days

Extended payment terms increase the likelihood we will grant customer concession such as reduced license

payments or additional rights rather than hold firm on minimum commitments in an agreement to the point
of

losing potential
advocate and licensee of patented technology in the marketplace

Extended payment terms on

patent license arrangements are not considered to be fixed or determinable if payments are due beyond the

Company standard payment terms primarily because of the risk of substantial modification present in our

patent licensing business As such revenue on royalty arrangements
with extended payment terms are recognized

as fees become fixed and determinable

F- 17



DIGIMARCCORPORATION
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In thousands except share and per share data

Patent Licensing Arrangement with Intellectual VenturesTM

On October 2010 the Company entered into patent licensing arrangement with IV Digital Multimedia

Inventions LLC Delaware limited liability company affiliated with Intellectual Ventures IV pursuant to

which the Company granted an exclusive license to sublicense subject to pre-existing encumbrances and grant-

back license 597 patents and 288 patent applications held by the Company The Company retained patents and

128 patent applications that are not subject to the exclusive license as well as 26 patents and 26 patent

applications for which the Company holds rights with third parties

The Company also assigned to IV the related causes of action and other enforcement rights and IV has the

sole right but not the obligation to prepare file prosecute maintain defend and enforce the licensed patents at

its expense IV may at any time abandon its license or other rights to all or any of the licensed patents in which

case certain licensed patents that IV opts to release revert back to the Company

The Company also entered into patent rights agreement pursuant to which the Company granted IV an

exclusive call option to purchase all or any number of the licensed patents and/or patent applications The

agreement further provides for the grant by IV to the Company the right to put all or any number of patents

within the licensed patents to IV if IV threatens or commences an action or proceeding with respect to

infringement of licensed patent

The financial aspects of the IV agreement for the Company include

license issue fee of $36 million paid to the Company in increasing quarterly installments over three

years $11400 in 2011 $12550 in 2012 and $6775 in 2013

20% of the profits generated from the IV licensing program which profits consist of sublicensing and

other monetization revenue less specified expenses including the license issue fee

IV assumes responsibility for approximately $1 million per year in prosecution and maintenance costs

previously borne by the Company

minimum of $4 million of paid support over five years from the Company to assist IV in maximizing

the value of the licensed assets and

royalty-free grant-back license to the licensed patents to continue the Companys existing business

related to those assets including maintaining and renewing existing patent licenses and providing

software and services

The payment terms extend beyond the Companys normal 30 to 60 day payment terms thus the license

revenue is being recognized when the installments are due and the support services will be recognized as the

services are performed

Segment Information

Geographic Information

The Company derives its revenue from single reporting segment media management solutions Revenue

is generated in this segment through licensing of intellectual property subscriptions to various products and

services and the delivery of services
pursuant to contracts with various customers The Company markets its

products in the U.S and in non-U.S countries through its sales personnel
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Revenue based upon the hill-to location by geographic area is as follows

Domestic

International

Total

Successor Successor Successor

Period

August 2008

Year Ended through

December 31 2009 1ecember 31 2008

8673 $3425

10398 4407

$19071 $7832

Year Ended

Icccmher 31 204

$19034

12116

$31150

Predecessor

Iertod

January 2008

through

August 2008

6274

5676

SI I.95

Major us tomers

Customers who accounted for more than I0/ of the Companys revenues are as tolkWs

Central Banks

Intellectual Ventures

Arhitron

The Nielsen Company

Nielsen

Successor Successor Successor

Period

August 2008

Year Ended Year Ended through

December 31 2010 December 31 2009 December 312008

30/ 46 467

8d/

l4/

247

Predecessor

Ieriod

January 2008

through

August 2008

397

5/

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation includes expense charges for all stock-based awards to employees and directors

These awards include option grants and restricted stock awards

Stock-based compensation expense was allocated to the predecessor based on combination of specific and

shared services resource allocations from Old ligimarc All cash flow related to stock compensation generated

by Old Digimarc was retained by Digimarc

Determining Fair Value

Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors authorized l0XX shares of Series Redeemable Nonvoting Preferred stock Series

Preferred to be issued to the executive officers The Series Redeemable Nonvoting Preferred stock has no

voting rights except as required by law and may he redeemed at the option of the Companys Board of Directors

at any time on or after June 18 2013

The Series Prekrred is redeemable based on the stated fair value of $5.X per share and the related stock

compensation expense is recognized over the non-redeemable period of years or 60 months through June 2113

using the straight-line method The Series Preferred has no dividend rights and no rights to the undistrihuted

earnings of the Company
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.SioA ption.

Valuation and Anoruzatwn Method The Company estimates the lair value of stock-based awards granted

using the Black-Scholes option valuation model The Company amortizes the fair value of all awards on

straight-line basis over the requisite service periods which are generally the vesting periods he fair value of

each
option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model

Lpei ted Life The expected lik of awards granted represents the period of time that they are expected to be

outstanding The ompany determined the initial expected life based on simplified method in accordance with

SAR 110 .Shared-Ba.od Payment giving consideration to the contractual terms vesting schedules and post-

vesting forfeitures Stock options granted generally vest over four years for employee grants and two years for

director grants and have contractual terms of ten years

perted Volatility ihe Company estimates the initial volatility of its common stock at the date of grant
based on 50/51 blend of the Companys own historical volatility and an independent analysis of peer groups
historical volatilits calculated by individual entity basis of its common stock using the Black-Scholes option

valuation model based on historical stock prices over the most recent period commensurate with the estimated

expected life of the award for 2010 For 289 the ompanys estimate of volatility was based on an independent

analysis of peer groups historical volatility of their common stock calculated by individual entity basis

Rick-i ree Interest Rate The ompany bases the risk-free interest rate used in the I3lack-Scholes option

valuation model on an interest rate on Treasury bond with maturity commensurate with each expected term

estimate

Lptited iudend Yield The Company has never paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does

not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future Consequently the Company uses an expected

dividend yield of /ero in the Black-Scholes option valuation model

summary of the weighted average assumptions and results for options granted are as follows

August 2008

Through
2010 2009 Devember 31 2008

Expected life in years 5.2 6.0 5.64 5.6

Expected volatility 52% 55% 70.45 70 72%
Risk-free interest rate 2.5% 3.0f 2.1 2.8c 2.9c

Expected dividend yield oc oc oc

thc fair value of stock options granted was $1159 $185 and $7502 for the
year ended lecember 31 2010

and 28- and the Period August 288 through December 31 288 respectively

pecied Forfeitures The Company uses zero forfeiture for both the stock options granted to employees
which vest monthly and the stock options granted to the Companys Iircctors which the initial option grants

for new lirectors est 50X on the first anniversary of the date of grant and then monthly thereafter and which

the annual option grants for continuing Iirectors vest monthly The Company records stock-based

compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest including awards made to Directors who

are expected to continue with the Company through the year following the date of grant Forfeitures that occur

during the month are not expensed
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/eu i/ .Su

The Compensation Committee of the Board of lirectors awarded restricted stock shares under the

ompanys 2008 Stock Incentive Plan to certain employees The shares subject to the restricted stock awards

vest over certain period usually tour years following the date of the grant Specific terms of the restricted

stock awards are governed by Restricted Stock Agreements between the Company and the award recipients

Ihe tair value of restricted stock awards granted is based on the fair market value of the olupany

COI1itlltil stock on the date of the grant measurement date and is recogniied over the vest
rig period ut tIlL

related restricted stock using the straightline method

Stockbased onipensation

Succssor Stiece.sor Succtsor IrccIttt.r

tcriod ltrnul

Augta.I 2008 .Juinuar 2018

car Ended ear Ended through through

lkcember 31 2010 Iecember 31 2W Itcernhwr 31 2018 Aiigui 2018

Stock based compensation

ust of revenue 373 231

Sales and marketing 192 210 38 IS

Research development and

engineering
314 187 51 34

kneral and administrative 2083 1.747 422 537

Intellectual property
06 69 16 35

Stock compensation

expense
3.068 2.444 532 913

apitaliied to patent

costs 37

lotal stockiasel compensation $3 105 $2479 5532 591

At ecenther 31 2010 the ompany had l0.X shares of Series redeemable nonvoting pieterreil stock

57.tIS lUll 5LstLl stock options an1 19776 shares of restricted stock outstanding As of leceniher 2110

and 288 the onipany had $6212 $6114 and $8337 respectively of total unrecogniied coilipensatioli

CL ist ic ated to in vested stock based awards granted under all equity conipensat ion plans inc tid tug opt ns and

restricted stock lutal unrecogniied compensation cost will he adjusted for
any

future changes in estiiiiated

irt cit res he onipany expects to recognite
this compensation cost for stock opt bus and best ricled sIt ver

weighted average period of years and .72 years respectively through November 2014

In urn lab in regarding LIe ferred stuck 1W 1W nsat ion cx pen se and informat on related lie ass Liii ptiobls ti sed

in the above calculations is further described in Note II
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Net Income Per Share

Net income per share is calculated in accordance with ASC 26 Earnings Per Share which provides that

basic and diluted net income per share kr all periods presented are to he computed using the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during each period with diluted net income per share including the eIlct

ot potentially dilutive common shares

ear Ended Iecember 31 2010

Income Shares Per

810s 000s Share

Numerator lenominiitor Amount

Basic EPS

Income available to common shareholders $4 174 7.120 $0.59

Effect of Iilutive Securities

Options 440

Restricted stock 63

Diluted EPS

Income available to common shareholders $4174 7623 $0.55

lhere were flo common stock equivalents related to stock options that were anti-dilutive for 2010 because

their exercise price was lower than the average market price of the underlying common stock for the period

Period August 2008 through

Year Ended December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Income Shares Per Income Shares Per

000s 000s Share 000s 80s Share

Numerator Iknominaor Amount Numerator Ienomlnator Amount

Basic Els

Inc inc available te corn mon

shareholders 2.757 7.140 $0.39 $76 7.156 $0.01

Effect of Dilutive Securities

ptons

Restricted stock

Iiluted EPS

iic uric available to common

shareholders $2757 7140 $0.39 $76 7156 $0.01

there were 152.563 common stock equivalents related to stock options that were anti-dilutive and excluded

roiii di kited net income
per share calculations for 2X9

ommon stock equivalents related to stock options of 974053 were excluded from diluted net income per

share calculations or the period August 2X through December 2M because their exercise price was

higher than the
average market price of the underlying common stock for the period
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Trade Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Ioubtful Accounts

/j/ unts Re ItUb/

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced aniount and do not hear interest

Ikcenibcr 31 2010 Ikcrnbtr 31 2X9

Irade accounts receivable $3.48 S357

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade accounts receivable net $3481 $357

Unpaid deferred revenues included in accounts

receivable $2045 $1 .926

loiance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the ompanys best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses

in the ompanys existing accounts receivable The Company determines the allowance based on historical

write-off experience and current information The Company reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts

monthly Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been

exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote

Inpaul deterred Pt eiiius

The unpaid deferred revenues that are included in accounts receivable are hilled in accordance with the

provisions
uf the contracts with the Companys customers Unpaid deferred revenues from the Companys cash-

basis revenue recognition customers are not included in accounts receivable nor deferred revenue accounts

Mujor usumer.s

ustomers who accounted for more than 0/ of accounts receivable net are as follows

lccember 31 2010 leccnilxr 31 2009

Central Banks 43Y 38Y

The Nielsen Company 29% 25%

ivolution II

less than l0/

Property and Equipment

Property 111 qufPIPtt

Property and equipment are stated at cost Property and equipment under capital lease obligations are stated

at the lower of the present value of minimum lease payments at the beginning of the lease term or fair value of

the leased assets at the inception of the lease Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred

The property and equipment related to the Company were separated from Old Digimarc and recorded at net

hook value cost less accumulated depreciation and classified as used property and equipment Depreciation on

property
and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
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enertIlv ts to seven years Property and equipment held under capital leases are amortited by the straight-line

net ht tl ver the sli trter of the lease term or the estimated uset ul life mort i/at of property and equipment

under capital lease is included in depreciation expense

.easehokf tiliprovements are amortited by the straightline ritethod over the shorter of the estimated useful

Ii Ic or the lease term

Ikeenbcr 31 2010 Ikcenshcr 31 2009

lice urniture and fixtures 294 291

qtiipment .35 So

leasehold improvements 986 423

2.645 1864

.e ss ace ii iou ated deprec at it and ainort tat in

$1331 $1114

lroperiv and equipment additions for the years ended eceniher 2111 and 2109 totaled $782 and $460

cspecti\ ely eprecialion and amorti/ation expense on property and equipment for the years ended

eceiiiber and 2109 and the periods August 288 through 1ecember 288 and January 288

through August 2108 totaled $565 $558 $192 and $568 respectively

uture tuiniritum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows

Ojwrutlng

icir ending Ihtcmbcr 31 I.ca.e

2011 796

2112

2013 846

2114

2015

Ihereaf tel

lotal uiinimum lease payments $4823

Rent espetise on the operating leases for the years ended ecemher 2110 and 289 the periods

\LigIIst
288 through ecemher 2008 and January 288 through August 288 totaled $832 $765

18 and $447 respectively

If ic ompati has no equipment tinder longterm capital lease obligations as of lecember 31 289

10 Intangible AssetsPurchase and Capitalized Patent osts

Intangible assets are reviewed for impairtitent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

arm ing tnt in itt It an asset may not he recoverable
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Amoriiation expense on intangible assets fir the years
ended Iecemher 31 2010 and 2009 and the periods

August 200K through Iecemher 31 2XK and January 200K through August 210K totaled S79 S3l 56

and SO respectively

Iecemhr 31 2010 Ivcrnbcr 31 2fX9

Gross intangible assets $2.29 $1 .339

Accumulated aniort i/at ion 116 37

Intangible assets net 52.174 $1302

II Shareholders Equity

Ire/erred .Sh

In June 2XK the Board of lirectors authori.ed 25R.XX shares of preferred stock par
value 50X per

share 1he Board of lirectors has he authority to issue the undesignated preferred stock in one or more series

and to deteriii inc the preferences and rights and the qualifications limitations or restrict ions granted to or

imposed upon any wholly unissued series of undesignated preferred stock and to fix the number of shares

constituting any
series and the designation of such series without any further vote or action by the shareholders

ftc issuance of lreferrecl stock may have the effect of delaying deferring or preventing change of control of

our company without further act ion by shareholders and may adversely affect the voting and other rights of the

ders of coiii mon stock

len thousand shares of the authoried preferred stock have been designated as Series Redeemable

Nonvoting Ireferred stock In the event of the liquidation dissolution or other winding up of ligimarc before

any payllierit or distribution is made to the holders of common stock holders of the Series Redeemable

Nonvoting Preferred stock will he entitled to receive value of $5.X per
share of Series Redeemable

Nonvoting lreferred stock held by the shareholder The Series Redeemable Nonvoting Preferred stock has no

fling rights cx cc 11 as requ red by law and iii ay he redee med by the Board of 11 rectors at an time in her

June iS 201

loIio irig the spinoft the onipany issued to the executive officers an aggregate of O00 shares ot

Series Redeeiiiable Nonvoting Pref erred stock

flhllOfl

In June 200K the Board of lirectors authoried 50.XX.XX shares of common stock par value 50.001 per

share lhie ide rs if marc nl in stock are en titled to one te for each share he 11 of rec ird on all mat te rs

submitted to vote of our shareholders including the election of directors Subject to preferences that
illiiy

he

granted to any then outstanding preferred stock hoklers of common stock are entitled to receive ratably those

dividends as may he declared by the Board of lirectors out of funds legally available for such pirpse as well as

any distributions to the Companys shareholders The Series Preferred does not have any
dividend preferences

hi the event If the Companys liquidation dissolution or winding up holders of common stock are entitled to

sharc ratably in all if lie on ipany assets re mai iii
rig

after pay me lit of liahi les and the iq tii dat ion pret crc nec

any then outstanding preferred stock lolders of common stock have no preempt ye or other subscriPtion ii

con version rights There are no redemption or sill king fund pros isions applicable to the common sti ck All

outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable
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October 2XK each Oki ligimarc record holder as oF August 2XR received one share of Digiiiiarc

contirion stock for every three and onehalf shares of Old ligimarc common stock held by the shareholder Ihe

exchange resu lied in 43442 shares of ig marc common stock issued and outstandi rig

Sis lmentce Plan

ink 31 2XX the ompanys Hoard of Iirectors initially adopted the 288 Incentive Plan or the 288
Ian Fiie Plan provides for the grant of stock opt ions stock appreciation rights stock awards restricted

sloe st cc tin its pert orma nec shares pert ornrance tin its and cash based aw ants which may he grarr ted ii

otticers Jirectors niployee consultants agents advisors and independent contractors who provide services to

irs arid our affiliated companies

he 288 Plan authoriies the issuance of up to 2.5X.XX shares of common stock Ihe shares authoried

under the 288 Plan aie subject to adjustment in the event of stock split stock dividend recapitaliíation or

si 11111 ir event hares issued ii rider tire Plan will consist of authoried and uni ssued shares or slrares held by

irs as treasury shares If air award granted under tire 288 I-lair lapse.e xpires terminates or is forfeited or

surrendered witirout having been fully exercised or without tire issuance of all tire sirares subject to the award the

iiare ci se red by hat award will aga in he available for ti se nrde tire Plan Irares Irat are Ic irdered by

part cci Pant or retained by us as paynrent for the purchase pnce of air award or to sat sty tax itirhold
rig

hl igat it ins or ii vered by an award that is settled in cash or in soirre nrranner that 51 inie ir all of the shares

veied by the award are riot ssueI will he as ai lable tr isstiairce under the 08 Plan hr addition awards

erriited as substitute awards in connection with acquisition transactions will not reduce tire number of shares

iiiihori/ei.l for issuance under tire 288 Plan

.Sioi puonc

.\s of Ieceirrher 31 2010 under all of the ompanys stockbased conrpenrsation plairs options to Purchase

ru aggregate of If irrillion shares were outstanding and options to purchase air additiorral 1.1 million shares

ss ere authroriied for future grants tinder the plans The Company issues new shares upon option exercises

ptlons granted exercised cairceled aird expired nuder the stock incentive Ilan is sutiiiiiaried as follows

%%elghied IL erage
Numbtr of %Scighled Acerage .raiit Iatr Fair

Shares I.xertls4 Irite alue

ptions outstanding August 288

...................... 119408 9.64

iercised

airceled

ptions outstanding lecenrher 31 2008 1.1940R 9.64 $6.28

ranued 00R 991 $6 16

l.sercised 28.343 9.64 $6.3
Canceled 84 9.64 $6.28

ptions outstanding Iecenrher 31 289 1167.323 9.65 $6.28

1400X $15.64 $8.28

Ixercised 31 3.832 9.7 $6.32

airceled

ptious outstanding ecenrher 31 2010 993491 $10.47 $6.55
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The following table summarites information about stock options outstanding at 1ecembcr 2010

ptions ixirtisaik

Weighted %%eighted

Number Average Number cragt

Outstanding Price Fxerclsable irke

827241 9.64 334.986 9.64

30000 9.91 3008 9.91

lOo25 $14.99 21457 14.99

3008 $18.01 20.0X $18.01

993491 $10.47 40443 $10.35

At 1ecemher 31 2010 the aggregate
intrinsic value of outstanding and exercisable stock options was

$19410 and $7989 respectively The aggregate intrinsic value is based on our closing price of $30.01 on

December 31 2010 which would have been received by the optionees had all of the options with exercise prices

less than $30.01 been exercised on that date

The estimated weighted average lair value of outstanding stock options was $6.48 per share at

December 31 2010

Restrit fr/ Slot

The Compensation omnlittee of the Board of lirectors awarded restricted stock shares under the

Companys 288 Stock Incentive Plan to certain employees The shares subject to the restricted stock awards will

vest over certain period usually four years following the late ni the grant Specific ternis of the restricted

stock awards and performance vesting share awards are governed by Restricted Stock Agreements between the

Company and the award recipients

The following table reconciles the unvested balance of restricted stock

Unvested balance August 288

Granted

Vested

anceled

Unvested balance December 288

Granted

Vested

Canceled

t.Jnvested balance lecemher 31 2X
Granted

Vested

Canceled

Jnvested balance leccnibcr 31 2111

Fxerci Price

$9.91

$14.99

$18.01

$9.64 $18.01

Options Outstanding

Remaining

ontractual
tile ears

7.83

8.33

9.33

8.02

%eighted

Average
Number of rant Iate

Shares Fair Value

136.0X 9.64

15.XX 9.64

121000 9.64

2228 $11.55

3228 t4

.08 510.02

24.56t $16.77

34.350 9.89

3450 $13.05

197.76 $14.25
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12 Defined Contribution Pension Plan

The Company sponsors an employee savings plan the Plan which qualifies as deferred salary

arrangement under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code The plan combines both the employee savings

plan and company matching plan into one plan under Section 40 1k including 40 1k Roth option Employees

become eligible to participate in the Plan at the beginning of the month following the employees hire date

Employees may contribute up to 75% of their pay to the Plan subject to the limitations of the Internal Revenue

Code Company matching contributions are mandatory The previous Plan was terminated as of December 31

2008 that was different than the revised because it did not include 401k Roth option and employees received

lower contribution percentage of employees pay For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 the period

August 2008 through December 31 2008 and the period January 2008 through August 2008 the

Company made matching contributions in the aggregate amount of $323 $323 $99 and $130 respectively

13 Joint Venture and Related Party Transactions

On June 11 2009 the Company entered into two joint venture agreements with Nielsen to launch two new

companies The two joint venture agreements and revised patent license agreement expand and replace the

previous license and services agreement between the Company and Nielsen that had been in operation since late

2007 Under the new agreements the Company and Nielsen are working together to develop new products and

services including the expansion and deployment of those products and services that were in development under

the prior agreement

Under the terms of the patent license agreement Nielsen agreed to pay Digimarc $18750 during the period

from July 2009 through January 2014 and Digimarc granted to Nielsen non-exclusive license to Digimarcs

patents for use within Nielsens business Unless earlier terminated in accordance with the agreement the license

will continue until the expiration of the last to expire of the licensed patents The payment terms extend beyond

the Companys normal 30 to 60 day payment terms thus the license revenue will be recognized when the

installments are due

Joint Venture TVaura LLC is engaged in the development of copyright filtering solutions royalty/audit

solutions for online video and audio rights organizations guilds or other organizations involved in the

reconciliation of royalties residuals and other payments and other related products Each of the Company and

Nielsen are making initial cash contributions aggregating $3900 payable quarterly from July 2009 through

October 2011 The Company will provide technical and development services to TVaura LLCs business of

minimum service fees subject to adjustment for any development service fees paid to the Company by TVaura

Mobile LLC totaling $6670 during the period 2009 through 2011 Service revenue will be recognized as the

services are performed

Joint Venture II TVaura Mobile LLC is engaged in the development of certain enhanced television

offerings and other related products Each of the Company and Nielsen are making initial cash contributions

aggregating $2800 payable quarterly from July 2009 through October 2011

Pursuant to the terms of the agreements and Accounting Standards Codification AS 810

Consolidation the joint ventures will not be consolidated with the Company as the minority shareholder has

substantive participating rights or veto rights such that no shareholder has majority control
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Rehted IWIV /an.ca iOfl.S

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

TVaura LLC

apital contributions $1 .6X 7X

Revenue $2723 $1213

lViura Mobile 1.1

ipital contributions .2X 4X
lotal

apital contributions $2.X $1 .1X

RevenueI $2723 $1213

Technical and development services

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

aura .1 .C

Accounts receivable $255 $190

TVaura Mobile LLC

Accounts receivable

Suniniarited financial data for iVaura LLC

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

unaudited

urrent assets 777 330

Noncurrent assets 36

urrent liabilities 255

Noncurrent liabilities

Revenue

profit

Operating expenses 225 1.223

Net loss from continuing operations 2.24 .223

Ihe onlipanys prorata share net loss 1440 624

Sn iii ni an íed financial data for iV aura Mobile 1.1

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

unaudited unaudited

urrent assets 663

Noncurrent assets

urrent liabilities 279

Noncurrent liabilities

Revenue

Gross profit

Operating expenses
1.511 137

Net loss from continuing operations
1511 137

lhe ompanys pro-rata sharenet loss 740 67
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14 Income Faxes

0/il Iii.inare lhe provision for income taxes reflects withholding tax expense in various foreign

iirisdictiiins For all historic periods reported in the financial statements Old Iigimarc maintained valuation

iwances against its net deferred tax assets including net operating loss carry forwards because it was not

iiiiire Ii kcl than not that such deferred taxes would he real iied The provision for inconie taxes included foreign

taxes ithheld by Old iginiarc customers and paid to foreign jurisdictions on its behalf The predecessor

liiiancial stateillents indicate cumulative losses through August 2X

luriheriiiore the aiiiounts of cumulative expenses in the financial statements that were not allowed for

edera and state iicoiiie tax purposes were not su ff icient to result in posit ye taxable income which would have

required the onipan to record income tax expense As result no Federal or state income tax benefit was

cci
ig

iii ied or the hi ii ik Ii sse that were inc ti rred in those periods pri and no income tax cx nse was

recogniicd during the 2007 and 2X periods because any expense was offset by the benefit of net operating loss

Larr\ forwards ligiinarc as separate legal entity will not benefit from any of the carryforward tax attributes of

Id iginiarc including net operating loss carry-forwards

I-or the year ended Ieceniher 31 2010 the provision for income taxes reflects withholding tax

expense iii arious foreign withholding taxes are computed by our customers and paid to

foreign urisdictions on our behalf Ihere was no pro\ision for federal and state tax expense on net income as the

coi ii put ed ann in ii is ci iii p1
etc lv offset wit ii available federal and state attribute carry forwards In add it in we

iiintiiiue to pi\ ide for valuation allowance to offset our net deferred tax assets until such time that we are able to

conclude that it is iiiorc likel than not the tax assets or portions thereof will he realied

For the year ended leceniher 31 200- and for the period froiii August 2X through Eecemher 31 2X
there .15 no pri is tin ir ire lit net in ie taxis related to net net tine because lie iiii pu tat it in tf taxable nc one

resulted in net operating loss for the period

iiiiiponcnts of tax expense benefit allocated to continuing operations include the following

August 288

\ear I.ndd car Indcd through

levembtr 31 Icvembcr 3t lecember 31
20 tO 289 2008

urrent

l-ederil

State

Foreign 42 23

Subtotal 42 23 ID

eferred

Federal

State

ltireign

Subtotal

Itital tax expense $42 $23 $l

F-3
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The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the ompany effective income tax rate is as

kw

Income taxes computed at statutory rates

Increases decreases resulting from

State income taxes net of federal tax

benefit

Federal and state research and experimentation

credits

hange in uat lowance

Meals and entertainment

leferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes The tax

effects of significant items coniprising the Companys deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as

follos

l.36

239

153

55

ÔKI

.50

2SKI

919

37
5l
59K

or the year
ended ecemher 2010 the ompany valuation allowance decreased by .3 incldng

53K out of period adjustments For the year ended Iecemher 31 2009 the Company valuation allowance

increased by $1549 including $119 out of period adjustments $5 due to an adjustment to the rate applied to

ear Inded eur Eided

Icceinlwr 3l Irceiiiiwr 31
2010 21M9

1.434 344 929

August 2005

through

lcccrnhvr 31
255

34% 344

220 54 143 54 54

353 299 llY%

1.275 32% 1.343 494

lotal 42 74

16

37 43%
SI

23

2% 13

I4 10

7ç

I3%

eeemhtr 31 etcmlwr 31
2010 259

1eferred tax assets

Goodwill

Net operating loss carry-forwards

Stock based compensation

Fixed asset differences

1eferred rent

Federal and state research and experimentation credits

Foreign tax credit

Other

lotal gross deferred tax assets

.ess al LI at ion all owa nec

Net defrred lax assets

Ieferred tax liabilities

Fixed asset differences

latent expenditures

Total deferred lax liahi lilies

Net deferred lax asset liability

1.47K

1.544

932

K4

41K

34

4492

3K94

59K

919

919
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deterreds and $36 that will impact additional paid in capital For the years ended 1ecember 31 10 and 2009

he ompan has rec rded lull valuation allowance against the net ele ferred tax assets iint ii such tin ie that he

ompany believes it is more likely than not that the deterred tax assets will he realied

As of Iecemher 31 2010 the ompany has federal and state net operating loss carrv-liwwards of S4.49

and $449 respectively which have carry-forward of 13 20 years depending on the jurisdiction and fr

which the benefits upon usage will he recorded in additional paid in capital API from the effects of stock

options As of ecemher 2010 the onìpany has federal and state research and experimental tax credits of

$61 and $237 respectively which have carry-forward of 20 years depending on the jurisdiction and for

which $64 and $24 respectively upon usage will he recorded in API froni the effects of stock options As of

eceniher 31 2010 the Company has foreign tax credits of $76 which have carryforward of 10 years and

for which the benefits upon usage will he recorded in API from the effects of stock options

part of the AS 740 implementation the ompany adopted policy to record accrued interest and

penalties associated with uncertain tax positions in income tax expense in the statements of operations On initial

adopt ion of 74 and through December 2M9 the ompany recogn ted no uncertain tax positions nor

ace rued interest and pe mi It ies as ated with ci rice rtai tax po it if the ear ended ece tuber the

ompany recognuted no additional uncertain tax positions nor accrued interest and penalties associated with

uncertain tax positions

summary reconciliation of the onipanys uncertain tax positions is listed below

Iecenbvr 31 Ieccrnher 31
2910 21$9

Beginning balance

Add itt for cu rrint year tax positions

Reductioii for prior year positions resolved during the current

yeur

Fndung balance

Ihe onipany is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service covering its 2X and 20$

tax returns he orn pany do es anti ci pate any adi List men propo sed WI result in the assess inc nt

additional tax however any adjustments may reduce the net deterred tax asset and related aluation al lo ance

by an immaterial offsetting amount he ompany is subject to examination in the jurisdictions in which the

ompany operates for the tax years ending lecemher 31 2010 2X9 and 2tXS

15 ommitments and ontingencies

ertain of the ompanys product license and services agreements include an indemnification
provision

for

claims from third parties relating to the Companys intellectual property Such indemnification
provisions are

accounted for in accordance with AS 45 onhinoeuie.s Fo date there have been no claims made under

such indemnification
provisions

dec laratorv judgment action has been filed against igimarc in the nited States strict ourt in

elaware by Verance orporation licensee on September 30 2010 alleging the invalidity and non

infringement of 22 patents held by Digimarc Verance orp Iigimarc Corp. 0-cv-X3 -t NA
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Iecember 2010 Iigimarc tiled suit against Verance Corporation in the Iistrtct of Oregon igtiiiatc

is seeking payment for breach of contract by Verance 1igimarc Corp Verance Corp. 10- l4 ii.

The Company is subject from time to time to other legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordtnar

course of business Although the ultimate outcome of these matters cannot he determined management bet ic es

that as of Iecemher 31 2010 the final disposition of these proceedings will not have material ad ci si ef ect

on the financial position
results of operations or liquidity of the Company In accordance with AS 450 no

accrual has been recorded because the amounts are not probable or reasonably estimatable and range of

possible outcomes is not determinable

16 Stock Repurchases

In April 19 the Board If irectors approved stock repurchase progiIi1i ant hi IFI ng the put liase at lie

discretion of management of up to $50X of our common stock through either periodic openmarket or 11S ate

transactions at then prevailing market prices through April 30 2010 In April 2010 the Board of irectoi

approved an extension of the stock repurchase program through April 30 211

thcvnitwr 31 2010 Iccenitwr 31 2009

Shares IL1rcl11se1
W7

Purchases
.561

As part of the Companys 2X Stock Incentive Plan stock option are granted to certain eiiiployces arid

restricted stock shares are awarded to certain employees

lursuant to the terms of the stock option grants the ompany purchased shares of conItiion stock oilier se

deliverable to any employee number of whole shares of common stock having lair market value as

determined by the Company as of the date of exercise equal to the amount of the total value of the
lIlt

toils

exercised In addition the ompany withheld purchased from fully vested shares of conltnon stock other isc

deliserable to arty ertiployee number of whole shares of common stock having lair market value as

determined by the onipany as of the date of vesting equal to the amount of tax required to be withheld b\

iii inter to satisfy the tax withholding obligations of the Company in connection with the estitig of siclI slhttc\

Ihtvnitwr 31 2010 Ikccnlwr 31 2149

Stock option shares purchased for exercise 102.077

Purchases
3037

Stock options shares withheld purchased for tax .. .610

lax withholding obligations
2.435

Pursuant to the ternis of the restricted stock award agreement the ompany withheld pu
rchtased Iitii

vested shares of corittioti stock otherwise deliverable to any employee number If whole shates of cottttiiou

stock having fair market value as determined by the Company as of the date ol vesting equal 11 the attioutit of

tax required to be withheld by law in order to satisfy the tax withholding obligations If the oiiIparl\ iii

connect lotI wit lithe vesting of such shares

Iceni1wr 31 2010 Ihcvnilwr 31 2149

Restricted shares withheld purchased for tax 13516 2.617

lax withholding obligations
352 177
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17 Subsequent F%ents

lii accordance ith AS 855 .Sub.squeni .uents the ompanv has evaluated subsequent events

rtsc.iciit to the eai ended December 31 2010 on January 26 2011 the ontpany repurchased 552536
slities of its iOitliiiOil stock from Koninklijke Philips Flectronics NV in privately negotiated transaction The

crc purchased for an aggregate price of approximately $14.9 million including transaction lees To
f.k ilitate the repurchase the ompany sold $10752 and 52.9% of short and longterm marketable securities

icp_ctiel pool to their maturity date at an immaterial gain

he ieltlrclase tr.rnsactioii as not anticipated prior to year end and the onipany intends to continue to

Ii marketable securities until maturity

Quiarterl Financial Informatjon

Qii.iritr idtI IHrch 31 June30 September 34 Ietemher 31

21

cr cc rl\enlre 3514 $2918 27l 3131

cirsc and subscription revenue 6.678 2331 2.476 7342

iii reenue 10192 5248 5237 10.473

iii st of ie ernie 1857 1540 .469 1834
ii

pit it 835 3708 3768 8639

percent scr ice revenue 494 494 494 433
it percent license and subscription revenue 99 984 984

ross profit percent total 823 7V% 723 823
ilis arid iriarketing 74 759 953 1.092

RcsiaiiIi le elopinent and engineering .259 .32 .471 1.636

erueral and administrative 1885 1687 1.842 2.45
lruclleciuual propertv 257 319 IS 312

perrtunu income loss 4.193 378 813 3.149

iiicoiiie loss 3776 8% 1.460 2754
l.touuiics loss pci share

Ni oicooue loss per share basic 1.53 S0.13j 0.21 0.38

Nd ilcoriuc loss per share diluted 0.51 50 13 0.21 0.35

iiIuted ci age shares outstanding basic 7.096 7.097 7098 190

\\ irelited erage shares outstanding diluted 7387 7.097 7098 7.859
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Qiiarier ended
March 31 June 30 September30 Iecemher 31

2009

Ser ice revenue
S2.47 $2585 $2827 $263

.iceiise and subscription revenue
.95 .739 .942 2.586

lOtal ievenue
4429 4.324 4.769 554

lotal cost of ie enue
1.485 1.528 1.541 1747

ros jIOht
2944 2.7% 3.228 3802

Gross prolit
service revenue

43% 43 43/

Gross Piolit percent license and subscription revenue
97 98e%

Gross prolit percent total
66 65% 68% 69%

Sales and marketing
745 728 753 808

Research development and engineering
.27 1.217 1.191 1.310

General and administrative
.628 1.448 1.521 .702

Intellectual property
277 217 262 257

peratiilg loss
977 814 275

Net loss
80 678 687 583

share

Net loss pr share basic diluted
0.11 0.09 0.10 0.08

Weighted avcraie shares outstanding basic and diluted 7.158 7158 7.134 7.103
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EXHIBIT INDEX

In reviewing the agreements included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K please remember

they are included to provide you with information regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any other

factual or disclosure information about Digimarc or the other parties to the agreements The agreements may
contain representations and warranties by each of the parties to the applicable agreement These representations

and warranties have been made solely for the benefit of the other party or parties to the applicable agreement
and

should not in all instances be treated as categorical statements of fact but rather as means of

allocating the risk to one of the parties if those statements prove to be inaccurate

may have been qualified by disclosures that were made to the other party or parties in connection with

the negotiation of the applicable agreement which disclosures are not necessarily reflected in the

agreement

may apply standards of materiality in manner that is different from what may be viewed as material

to you or other investors and

were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or other date or dates that may be specified

in the agreement and are subject to more recent developments

Accordingly there representations and warranties may not describe the actual state of affairs as of the date

they were made or at any other time Additional information about Digimarc may be found elsewhere in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K and in Digimarcs other public filings which are available without charge through

the SECs website at http//www.sec.gov

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

2.1 Separation Agreement among DMRC Corporation DMRC LLC Digimarc Corporation and with

respect to certain sections L-1 Identity Solutions Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to

Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the Conmiission

on August 13 2008 File No 001-34108t

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 30 2010 between Digimarc Corporation Delaware

corporation and Digimarc Oregon Corporation an Oregon corporation incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 2.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May
2010 File No 001-34108

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Digimarc Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 2010

File No 001-34 108

3.2 Bylaws of Digimarc Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 2010 File No 001-34108

4.1 Specimen common stock certificate of Digimarc Corporation incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on

February 27 2009 File No 001-34108

4.2 Rights Agreement dated July 31 2008 between Digimarc Corporation and Computershare Trust

Company N.A as Rights Agent incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K filed with the Commission on February 27 2009 File No 001-34108

4.3 Form of Certificate of Designation of Series Preferred Stock attached as an exhibit to the Rights

Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.2 hereto

4.4 Form of Rights Certificate attached as an exhibit to the Rights Agreement filed as Exhibit 4.2

hereto
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Exhibit

Number
Exhibit Ihscription

10.1 License Agreement between DMRC orporation and L- Identity Solutions Operating Company

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No to the ompanys Registration

Statement on Form 10 filed with the ommission on October 200K File No 001 -3410K

10.2 Agreement date1 as of October 2007 between Digimarc Corporation and The Nielsen ompany

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Amendment No to the ompanys Registration

Statement On Form 10 filed on October 14 2KK File No MIl 34l0K

10.3 Counterfeit eterrcnce System lkvelopment and License Agreement dated as of January 999

between ligimarc orporation and the Hank for International Settlements incorporated by reference

to xhihit .4 to Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form filed with

the ommission on October 14 200K File No 00134 IOK

0.4 Form of ndenimi ticat Agreenwnt between 1M RC Corporation and each of its executive of ticers

and directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No to the ompany

Registration Statement on Form 10 filed with the omluission on August 13 2005

File No 1-3410K

10.5 Employment Agreement dated as of October 29 2KK between Digimarc orporation and Bruce

lavis incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form K-K

filed with the ommission on November 2XK File No 1-34108

10.6 Digimarc orporation 20K Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the

ompany Quarterly Report on Form 0Q filed with the ommission on Noventher 24 2005

File No 51-3410K

10.7 Form of Notice of Stock Option Award and Stock Option Award Agreement under the Digimarc

Corporation 258 Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit O.K to the ompany

Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q filed with the ommission on November 24 2XK

File No 00134105

O.K Equity Compensation Irogram for Nonemployee Directors under the Digimarc orporation 255

Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Companys Quarterly Report on

Iorm l0Q filed with the ommission on November 24 200K File No 5134108

10.9 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Digimarc Corporation and each of its executive

officers and directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Iigimarc orporations Annual

Report on Form 10-K as filed by Iigimarc orporation with the Securities and Exchange

omnlission on March 13 256 File No XK2K3 17

11 ffi1 of ha uge of out ii Retent Agree me lit cute red into by and bet wee Dig mare rp at

and each of Messrs Mconnell and hamness incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 10 to the

ompanys Annual Report on Form 10K filed with the ommission on February 24 2010

File No 1-3410K

10.11 1.ease Agreement dated March 22 254 between ligmmarc orporation and PS Business Iai ks

1..P. as amended on May 13 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the ompanys

Quarterly Report on Form 0Q filed with the Commission on July 30 2010 File No 3411K

10 ate ni ice use Agreement effective as of ct the 20 11 between marc orporat and

ligital Multimedia Inventions 1.1 .2

10.13 GrantBack .icense Agreement dated October 2010 between Iigimarc orporation and IV

ligital Multimedia Inventions 1.1



Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

10.14 Patent Rights Agrçement dated October 2010 between Digimarc Corporation and IV Digital
Multimedia Inventions LLC

10.15 Work Agreement dated October 2010 by and among Digimarc Corporation Invention Law
Group P.C and IV Digital Multimedia Inventions LLC2

21.1 List of Affiliates

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

23.3 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Rule 3a- 14a/15d- 14a Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 3a- 14a/15d- 14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial Officer

99.1 TVaura LLC financial statements and related footnotes for the year ended December 31 2010 the

period June 11 2009 inception through December 31 2009 and the cumulative period from

June 11 2009 inception through December 31 2010

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

I- The Separation Agreement contains brief list
identifying all schedules and exhibits thereto Such

schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601b2 of Regulation S-K The Registrant

agrees to furnish supplementally copy of the omitted schedules and exhibits to the Securities and

Exchange Commission upon request

Confidential treatment has been granted for certain portions omitted from this exhibit pursuant to an order

granted by the Commission on October 21 2008 under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended Confidential portions of this exhibit have been separately filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission

Confidential treatment has been requested for certain portions omitted from this exhibit pursuant to

Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Confidential portions of this exhibit

have been separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
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Bernard Whitney
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